

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 1

DETROIT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS
REGULAR MEETING
THURSDAY, APRIL 19, 2018 AT 3:00 PM
DETROIT PUBLIC SAFETY HEADQUARTERS
1301 THIRD AVENUE
DETROIT, MICHIGAN 48226

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

COMMISSIONERS:

EVA GARZA DEWAELSHE, Vice Chair, At-Large
DARRYL D. BROWN, Commissioner (Dist. 1)
SHIRLEY A. BURCH, Commissioner (Dist. 3)
WILLIE E. BELL, Commissioner (Dist. 4)
WILLIAM M. DAVIS, Commissioner (Dist. 7)
ELIZABETH BROOKS, Commissioner At-Large

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

REPRESENTING THE CHIEF OF POLICE'S OFFICE:

DEPUTY CHIEF TODD BETTISON

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 4

1 Detroit, Michigan

2 April 19, 2018

3 About 3:00 p.m.

4

5 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHÉ: Good afternoon
6 everyone. I'm police Commissioner Eva Garza Dewaelsche,
7 vice chair of the Board of Police Commissioners. Chair
8 person Lisa Carter is unable to attend today's meeting,
9 so I'll be taking her place today. On behalf of the
10 board thank you for attending today's board meeting.
11 For people viewing this meeting on your government cable
12 channel, thank you for viewing. For the invocation we
13 have invited Detroit police chaplain and I would ask
14 that they come to the podium, please.

15 MR. HICKS: Madam Chair, I don't see a
16 chaplain present.

17 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHÉ: Commissioner Bell,
18 will you do us the honor? Thank you.

19 COMMISSIONER BELL: Let us pray.

20 (Invocation given.)

21 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHÉ: And at this time I'd
22 like to ask our commissioners to introduce themselves
23 starting from my left.

24 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Commissioner Brown,
25 District 1.

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 5

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: Willie Bell, District 4.

2 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Elizabeth Brooks,

3 at-large.

4 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Shirley Burch, District

5 3.

6 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: William Davis, District

7 7.

8 MR. HICKS: Madam Chair, you have a quorum.

9 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Thank you.

10 Commissioners, you have before you the agenda for April

11 19th. Is there a motion to approve?

12 COMMISSIONER BROWN: So moved.

13 COMMISSIONER BELL: Second.

14 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: It is moved and
15 seconded. All those in favor indicate by saying aye.

16 ALL: Aye.

17 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Opposed? Thank you,
18 motion carries. Also in your package you have minutes
19 from April 12th, 2018. Is there a motion to approve?

20 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: So moved.

21 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Support.

22 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: It's been moved and
23 seconded. All those in favor indicate by saying aye.

24 ALL: Aye.

25 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Opposed? Thank you.

DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018

Page 6

1 And now, Commissioners, we have the vice chair's
2 report -- oh I'm sorry before I go to that are there any
3 elected officials or representatives in the audience
4 that we have with us today? If we do, we ask that you
5 please stand and introduce yourself. Okay. Hearing
6 none, then, we have joining us today D.C. Bettison in
7 place of the chief. Thank you for joining us. And
8 would you like to introduce your staff?

9 DEPUTY CHIEF BETTISON: Absolutely. So I'll
10 have them introduce themselves and I'll start with right
11 there in the front Captain Sloan.

12 CAPTAIN SLOAN: Captain Kari Sloan from
13 Crime Intelligence Unit.

14 CAPTAIN PETTY: Captain Conway Petty chief
15 liaison.

16 COMMANDER WILSON: Marlon Wilson Commander,
17 professional standards bureau.

18 COMMANDER BRYANT: Commander Bryant, major
19 crimes.

20 CAPTAIN CHAMBERS: Captain Michael Chambers,
21 internal patrols.

22 SERGEANT WATKINS: Sergeant Watkins,
23 planning.

24 CAPTAIN TUCKER: Captain Tucker, SVU.

25 UNKNOWN COMMANDER: Commander (inaudible).

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 7

1 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Is that it, sir?

2 DEPUTY CHIEF BETTISON: That's it. Well,
3 Bart, LSA folks.

4 LIEUTENANT YOUNG: Lieutenant Mark young.

5 LIEUTENANT SIZEMORE: Lieutenant Rodney
6 Sizemore.

7 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: That's it, correct?

8 DEPUTY CHIEF BETTISON: Yes.

9 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Thank you very much.
10 I'm going to go to our secretary Hicks to introduce our
11 Board of Police Commissioners staff.

12 MR. HICKS: Thank you, Madam Chair. That
13 today's meeting is being taped by Sergeant Quinn. The
14 audio, visual activity today is being administered by
15 Media Services and Caitlyn Mancini is the court reporter
16 today. And as for the staff, immediately to my right is
17 Robert Brown and then if we go to the first row on this
18 side Mrs. Johnson, who's fiscal. Mr. Warwick who is
19 legal. Mrs. Blossom, who is community outreach and
20 media coordinator. Mrs. White who is policy and then
21 all the way over skipping over to Bridget Lamar who is
22 the interim personnel director and then skipping back in
23 this direction to Dr. Polly McCalister will introduce
24 herself and balance of her staff that's present.

25 DR. MCCALISTER: Thank you. Good afternoon,

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 8

1 Board. I'm Polly McCalister, chief investigator and
2 attending this meeting with me today is supervising
3 investigator Cromwell. Senior Investigator Jones.
4 Investigator Banks. Investigator Jones. Investigator
5 Callaway. Investigator Nichols. Investigator Stewart.
6 And Investigator Cole. Thank you.

7 VICE CHAIR DEWAELESCHE: Thank you,
8 Dr. McCalister. Now I'd like to give my report on
9 behalf of the Board. I want to express our concern and
10 support for fallen and injured officers and their
11 families. I would ask the chief during his remarks to
12 provide us with any additional information related to
13 injured or fallen officers. The Board of Police
14 Commissioners meets every week except for Thanksgiving
15 and Christmas holiday periods. We meet at police
16 headquarters in regular session three weeks in the month
17 on Thursdays at 3 p.m. We also meet in the community
18 every second Thursday of the month at 6:30. Our last
19 meeting in the community was at Peace Baptist Church.
20 The Board of Police Commissioners exists to provide
21 civilian oversight for the work of the Detroit Police
22 Department. As a board we receive and investigate
23 noncriminal citizens' complaints, monitor the operations
24 of the department, and working with the mayor and the
25 chief of police we make or modify police policy.

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 9

1 Our objective is the same as the city of
2 Detroit, to provide for the best use of our tax dollars
3 to improve on the quality of life within our city. As a
4 board we bring a unique perspective to policing, the eye
5 and the viewpoint of civilians. The principal of
6 civilian oversight is as old and as important as all the
7 founding principals in our democracy. Separation of
8 powers between and within government allows for
9 accountability, transparency, rights to appeal, and
10 citizens control. These principals are important
11 nationally as well as locally. As we continue to work
12 with the chief of police I want to also note a recent
13 communication from the chief, which he appointed several
14 officers to higher ranks. I want to be clear later you
15 will hear a statement and discussion from Commissioner
16 Bell discussing a difference of opinion on the reading
17 of our city charter. This difference in opinion relates
18 to the board's authority to approve appointments and
19 promotions. I want to be clear that this difference is
20 not a reflection on the individuals up for promotion or
21 appointment. As far as we can see each of these
22 individuals are fine representatives of the department
23 and do great work on behalf of our citizens. The
24 question here relates to authority, process, and
25 procedures. Commissioner Bell will address this issue

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 10

1 later after my report.

2 I also want to point out that in your
3 package is a job description for the position of
4 director of police personnel. Please help us distribute
5 the document. Under our outreach strategy, the position
6 posting will close on May 20th of 2018. Our hope is to
7 finalize the selection process and bring one or more
8 qualified candidates to the board within the next few
9 months. To assist us with the selection process we have
10 asked D.C. Todd Bettison and city of Detroit personnel
11 director to act as advisors to the process to ensure
12 compliance with city rules and department expectations.

13 Next, I will point out that in your board
14 package there is a modified board calendar. Today we
15 have a schedule -- on our schedule a presentation on
16 crime intelligence. In the past few years the city of
17 Detroit has made major investments to fight crime and to
18 improve officers' safety. Two of the most notable
19 efforts has been -- have been the investments in the
20 realtime crime center and the enhancement of the 9-1-1
21 center. Today's presentation is about those investments
22 and the gains to our citizens. The realtime crime
23 center, the enhanced 9-1-1 center combined with the
24 hundreds plus Green Light locations across the city
25 should work toward better police service and reduced

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 11

1 crime.

2 In our last meeting we discussed secondary
3 employment as a force multiplier. Investments and the
4 realtime crime center is also a force multiplier. The
5 new technology allows for more eyes to fight crime. I
6 look forward to the presentation to examine how this mix
7 of law enforcement tools work together for the benefit
8 of our citizens and visitors to Detroit. Later in the
9 meeting in a closed session we will take up a request
10 from the chief of police to suspend without pay
11 Lieutenant Timothy Leach. Please note that the request
12 from the chief is a personnel item. We are allowed
13 under the Open Meetings Act to discuss personnel items
14 in private. To accommodate this request we have
15 adjusted the flow of our agenda to go into closed
16 session after public comments. This adjustment
17 alleviates the needs for citizens and visitors to sit
18 around during the closed session. Please note that if
19 an action item results from the closed session, we are
20 also required to return to regular order and take any
21 votes in public.

22 With the aforementioned adjustment in our
23 agenda in the mid section of the meeting, we will have
24 oral communications from the audience. I remind you, if
25 you would like to speak to the board, please make sure

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 12

1 you print your name on a speaker's card. Cards location
2 are located in the back table and can be obtained by
3 seeing Mr. Robert Brown and he needs your card before
4 the public comments section. I will ask Commissioner
5 Bell to address the board on the chief's recent
6 appointment letter at this time.

7 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, Madam Chair.
8 Good afternoon, first of all. The power to promote
9 officers when in department is spelled out in the
10 Detroit city charter. The authority is found in section
11 7-802 that's 7-802. And 7-803 and 7-806. And 7-814.
12 Section 7-802 set up the board of police commission,
13 giving the board supervisory control and oversight of
14 Detroit Police Department. Section 7-803 lists many
15 other powers of the board. Section 7-814 promotion
16 reads, the chief of police shall make all promotion when
17 in the department. All promotions should be with
18 approval of the board. This section continue to
19 indicate that all ranks of the lieutenant or equivalent
20 must be approved by the board.

21 And, finally, in section 7-806 the consent
22 of the board includes deputy chief. Over time the rank
23 structure of the department has gone through several
24 changes but in our opinion the board authority to
25 provide consent and approval remains standard. We

DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018

Page 13

1 approve promotion of lieutenant and above. And we
2 provide consent for captains and above, excluding the
3 chief of police. Even with the selection of the chief
4 of police, we have extraordinary powers to provide the
5 mayor with a short list of chief that he is obligated to
6 pick from. Therefore, we note for the record that the
7 chief is not when in keeping with the mandates of
8 Detroit city charter. We hope that the chief will
9 refashion his action and bring to the board the
10 appropriate request for consent of the appointment and
11 promotion listed in his April 16th, 2018 letter.

12 Madam chair, my personal remarks reflecting
13 that as you well know, as a former commissioner, that's
14 been the case since 1974 starting with Mayor Young
15 empowering the police Board of Police Commission. At
16 that time all the commissioners were appointed. That
17 continue up to 2012. In 2013 we elected commissioners
18 and we have a composition of 7 and 4. Not withstanding,
19 we are not under the Emergency Manager Act anymore and
20 we have negotiated, have had dialogue not just with the
21 chief of police but with the mayor of this city, Mayor
22 Duggan, in reference to this particular matter. So not
23 withstanding, I think that we have to go publicly to
24 indicate that the charter's been violated, that this
25 board is in power to act based on the charter.

DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018

Page 14

1 You can talk about assistant chief.
2 Assistant chief came about under this board approval.
3 That took the place of executive deputy chief. We
4 respect the process. The charter language did not
5 change and we understand that Mayor Young as mayor
6 talked about appointments and promotion, one and the
7 same. The only thing that changed with that process the
8 mayor had a concept that all ranks above the rank of
9 inspector at that time, above a lieutenant, would be
10 subject to appointee of the city mayor and they had
11 submit resignation letter, some of us know that history.
12 We know that history well. So that is appointed rank,
13 promoted, whatever you want to call it and we want to
14 move forward that the public need to know, and this
15 board need to take a firm position in terms of
16 resolution, to reenforce our position on promotions
17 above the rank of lieutenant.

18 I assume that all my commissioners
19 understand, whether it be elected or appointed, the
20 charter language and the emergency manager date is over
21 for the city of Detroit. The mayor has his full power.
22 The city clerk full power and the council full power but
23 we hit the lobby to get our power back in 2015. We
24 achieved that. So this issue is before us and we going
25 to advocate when I look back on a chief of police

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 15

1 starting with Chief Hart all past chiefs with the
2 cooperation of this board is brought that list before
3 this board and we approve the process. Every chief of
4 police except for this chief of police and it's not
5 about Chief Craig personally; it's about a professional
6 conduct of a chief of police and the mayor in terms of
7 this board in terms of the process. And I hope that you
8 understand that issue as a city charter is something
9 that we have to abide by. When we go before the council
10 and council president Brenda Jones pull out the city
11 charter; Commissioner Bell, this is what we respond by,
12 the city charter, and this is what this board respond by
13 in terms of this mandate. So I would hope that if you
14 in the community, you hearing this on terms of your
15 monitor or TV and those in the audience that you would
16 take a look at this issue and join us in terms of as we
17 go forward to making sure that we reach this mandate of
18 that this board approve all ranks above the rank of
19 lieutenant. Thank you Madam Chair.

20 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Is there a motion?

21 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: So moved.

22 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Second.

23 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: It's been moved and
24 seconded. Is there any discussion? Hearing none all
25 those in favor indicate by saying aye.

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 16

1 ALL: Aye.

2 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Opposed?

3 MR. HICKS: Madam Chair, just for the record
4 the motion is to approve the formal statement in which
5 the -- which Mr. Bell read at the beginning of his
6 remarks, corrected.

7 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Could you restate
8 the motion? Is that correct?

9 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes.

10 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Okay. Thank you.
11 The next item on our agenda the report from the chief of
12 police, or D.C.

13 DEPUTY CHIEF BETTISON: Deputy Chief
14 Bettison representing the chief today and I'll start the
15 report with crime. So it is timely with the
16 presentation from our Crime Intelligence Unit because I
17 give out the stats regarding our numbers, it's like,
18 well, what are we doing right, and how are we achieving
19 this? And I would have to say it's through smart
20 policing; through the investment in technology and like
21 you said, Chair Dewaelsche, through force multiplier.
22 So in the category of homicide we are down 18 percent
23 year-to-date. The category of robbery, which is a
24 subcategory of carjacking as well, we're down 20
25 percent. Aggravated assault 3 percent and our nonfatal

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 17

1 shootings 21 percent. For a total of violent crime
2 offenses we're down 6 percent and in property crime
3 we're trending down in all categories as well from
4 burglary 29 percent; larceny, 5 percent; stolen vehicle
5 25 percent. In total property crime offenses we're down
6 18 percent. And through our Green Lights and just the
7 add cameras and just good old fashioned police work and,
8 you know, investigative follow up and our community and
9 citizens with us as well, by working through community
10 policing, instilling the trust within our department and
11 citizens actually speaking up. That's what's helping us
12 close cases and our homicide section, our clearance rate
13 is above the national average right there in the area of
14 60 percent, so I just want to give kudos to all the hard
15 work our officers are doing and to the community as well
16 that's supporting us.

17 And then, Commissioner Bell, I would like to
18 take this time also to say that regarding your comments
19 that we'll respond with a response to your comments in
20 writing and that, obviously -- obvious it's a difference
21 in the interpretation, but we definitely will give you
22 adequate response. Thank you.

23 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Thank you very much.
24 Does that conclude your report, sir?

25 DEPUTY CHIEF BETTISON: At this time.

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 18

1 VICE CHAIR DEWAELESCHE: Questions or
2 comments?

3 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I noticed that he
4 didn't mention anything about the sexual assaults which
5 is way up.

6 DEPUTY CHIEF BETTISON: I'm sorry, yep. Our
7 sexual assault category at the previous meeting our sex
8 crimes unit Sergeant Ward and also Captain Tucker
9 reported out that category is up and that category is up
10 28 percent as far as sexual assaults. And then like I
11 could also bring Captain Tucker to the podium and he can
12 report out as to the uptick, the spike in our sexual
13 assaults.

14 CAPTAIN TUCKER: Good afternoon. Captain
15 Joe Lewis Tucker special victims unit for the chair. We
16 are up but if I may say it's a good up. In the fact
17 that we're getting more reporting where people, normally
18 it's a silent crime, so people would normally not tell.
19 We're doing a lot of speaking engagements. We have a
20 different reporting system in our law enforcement
21 notifications. They're telling counselors and telling
22 their teachers that, hey, my uncle's touching me, what
23 do I do. And they're bringing that to us so that's up
24 like about 25, 26 percent but it's a good increase but
25 also our closure rate is up. And that's up 61 percent.

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 19

1 National average is like 40 percent, so we're going in
2 the right direction. We want that category to go up; we
3 want our disclosure rates to go up; we want them to tell
4 us more and that's what's happening right now.

5 DEPUTY CHIEF BETTISON: And then if I could
6 jump in one of the things that drives fear within the
7 community when it comes to crime of sexual assault is
8 the stranger where you picture that individual pulling
9 someone off the street. Could you speak of the sexual
10 assaults in the nature of it exactly, those are not up.

11 CAPTAIN TUCKER: Our unknowns are actually
12 down considerably. Our knowns are up and that, again,
13 goes to the fact that the kids and the victims are
14 talking now. But our unknowns are way down. We have
15 virtually -- I mean, our total amount 15 percent are
16 unknown and that's due to some false reporting but be
17 that as it may our knowns are way up and that's what we
18 want, so we're going in the right direction, if I can
19 say it that way.

20 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. Any
21 other questions or comments? Hearing none, thank you
22 very much.

23 CAPTAIN TUCKER: Absolutely.

24 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Now we have our
25 presentation to the board, which is crime Intel and real

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

1 crime center, thank you.

2 CAPTAIN SLOAN: Good afternoon. I'm Captain
3 Kari Sloan from the Crime Intelligence Unit. So I
4 wanted to give you an overview of our unit and talk
5 about our staffing levels. The Crime Intelligence Unit
6 itself has 53 employees. That's a mix of sworn and
7 non-sworn personnel. In addition, we are over the audio
8 video evidence response unit that has a total of 7 sworn
9 members and we have the responsibility of the nonfatal
10 shooting response team that has a total of 6 members.

11 So the Crime Intelligence Unit is a very
12 dynamic unit and our mission is to leverage information
13 from different resources, analyze that information, and
14 be able to assist all law enforcement but particularly
15 the Detroit Police Department and provide them with
16 information that can be used to prevent crime, pursue
17 and apprehend suspects, and aid in conviction. So Crime
18 Intelligence Unit some of the responsibilities there are
19 of course we are running the realtime crime center and
20 we are the department's hub for all information and
21 Intel. We have the ability to provide mapping and
22 analytics of crime trends, as well as providing daily
23 and weekly statistical information. Some of the
24 responsibilities of the audio video evidence response
25 team which is AVERT is to recover processed video

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 21

1 evidence from crime scenes, as well as provide support
2 to criminal investigations. Something else that AVERT
3 does for us is they perform pre and post install audits
4 at all of our oncoming Green Light businesses so we
5 ensure proper camera coverage at the locations.

6 The shooting response team is a city wide
7 investigative unit that responds to critical incidents
8 and nonfatal shootings off hours when detectives are not
9 available. The realtime crime center, which opened in
10 November of 2017 is in my opinion the most technically
11 advanced realtime crime center in our country. We run a
12 24 hour operation. We are staffed with sworn and
13 non-sworn personnel. And the purpose is to provide
14 analytical excellence by using technology such as the
15 high definition cameras that come in through Project
16 Green Light and other city-owned camera systems. We
17 have license plate readers. We have the ability to use
18 facial recognition software. We also have some video
19 analytic software and access to GPS tether data.

20 So we've also partnered with the traffic
21 management center from DPW and we're coordinating
22 efforts with them to improve traffic flow downtown as
23 well as coordinate during special events. Another
24 project at the realtime crime center is the
25 counterterrorism threat analysis team and that's our

DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018

Page 22

1 CTAT team, which I'll discuss a little more in the next
2 slide. But the main focus of the realtime crime center
3 is to improve quality of life for citizens in the city
4 of Detroit, as well as to improve officer safety. And
5 we're doing that by providing officers with actionable
6 intelligence when they're responding to the Green Light
7 locations. So I've mentioned the counterterrorism
8 threat analysis team. This is a group of Intel
9 specialists that provide a daily threat assessment of
10 international and domestic terror-related information.
11 So we also do event vetting through open source social
12 media for any events that are going on in the city. We
13 also follow any school threats. We know that was a big
14 problem not too long ago and we looked into each and
15 every one of those. And another big responsibility that
16 we have is monitoring the city's critical
17 infrastructure. And we monitor that through social
18 media, trying to identify threats that might be out
19 there, as well as some camera assets that we have.

20 We also partner with many people throughout
21 the city and some of our external partners are Detroit's
22 homeland security, the FBI. We partner with Wayne State
23 University in their urban studies and we also partner
24 with HIDTA, the Detroit crime commission and some of our
25 private partners are DTE, Rock Financial, the downtown

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 23

1 Detroit partnership, as well as Ilitch Holdings. So of
2 course Project Green Light Detroit is obviously our most
3 important project and we're very proud of it. Some of
4 the history of Project Green Light is some analysis was
5 done for January to June of 2015 where we discovered
6 that 25 percent of the violent crime that was occurring
7 in the city was happening within 500 feet of a gas
8 station. So we talked about how we could verify that
9 information, so we did some risk modeling and what that
10 showed is it demonstrated that businesses like gas
11 stations, party stores, and businesses that were open
12 later were at a higher risk for violent crime. So with
13 that the goal of Project Green Light was to
14 significantly reduce part one crime at these locations,
15 so beginning in January 2016 we partnered with 8 gas
16 stations who agreed to install high quality cameras,
17 improve lighting at their locations, upgrade their
18 Internet bandwidth and display Project Green Light
19 signage as well as a physical Green Light at their
20 location.

21 So DPD's responsibility with that is that we
22 have analysts that monitor incidents that occur at Green
23 Light locations in realtime. We provide priority
24 response to the locations for 9-1-1 calls and we're able
25 to virtually patrol these unit or these businesses at

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 24

1 the realtime crime center through the video feeds and
2 another asset is the increased patrol visits. We
3 average 184 patrol visits to these locations every
4 single day. So today Project Green Light consists of
5 307 participating businesses. It's all voluntary and we
6 have a very robust pipeline of businesses waiting to get
7 on to the project. We average about 30 calls for
8 service each day to Green Light businesses. And some of
9 the changes that we've made are we now have Greentown
10 corridor, which is 11 businesses in Greektown that came
11 together to join the program as a group. We have a DPS
12 vocational school. We have plazas and we have senior
13 living homes. So the goal is still to improve community
14 relationships and I believe that we're doing that.

15 Project Green Light staff we have a
16 dedicated staff that works with the businesses that are
17 interested and we have an entire process to on-board
18 them. They also work on compliance with MOU. We want
19 to ensure that the businesses that join our project
20 remain compliant with camera feeds, signage and such.
21 And then we also perform initial site visits before the
22 businesses goes live, as well as post install audits
23 after they've worked with the installer tap, the camera
24 system set up.

25 So going forward to the future we're looking

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 25

1 at adding multifamily housing to the project and we're
2 really paying attention to how we scale for growth. We
3 don't want to outgrow our capacity but we're constantly
4 evaluating staffing and how much we can handle there at
5 the realtime crime center and our goal for this year is
6 to have 500 businesses in the program by December. So
7 thank you. Do you have any questions?

8 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Commissioners, are
9 there any questions or comments?

10 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yes, regarding the
11 Green Light naturally that's something on my heart
12 because as our chief, Deputy Chief Bettison that work in
13 11th precinct and we are intricately involved with block
14 clubs to support the Green Light at the very beginning
15 of it. My question to the day is, though, have you
16 considered or is it already Green Lights around Detroit
17 public schools, especially where there's high crime?
18 Are they listed or posted there?

19 CAPTAIN SLOAN: So we have been coordinating
20 with Detroit public schools to work with them and
21 coordinate efforts to have access to their camera
22 systems.

23 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Thank you.

24 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I have a question.

25 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: After Commissioner

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 26

1 Brown.

2 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Captain Sloan, thank
3 you for the tour last week of the realtime crime center.
4 I was very impressed with the entire layout with
5 everything and not only that but just the knowledge that
6 each one of the operators have operating the system with
7 ease. They were very technically involved with what
8 they were doing. I was very impressed with that. And
9 also I'm happy to hear about the multifamily dwellings
10 because that was one of my babies that I took to the
11 mayor, so you can thank me for that one. But thank you
12 for that. You guys have done a great job with that.
13 And I hope it grows and we can get more of theses
14 businesses involved with the program.

15 CAPTAIN SLOAN: Thank you. We appreciate
16 that.

17 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHÉ: Commissioner Davis.

18 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Question as it relates
19 to your private partners like with Rock Financial. Do
20 you easily have access to their video or do you have to
21 go through a lot of steps to get it?

22 CAPTAIN SLOAN: It is an additional step to
23 access their camera systems but we work together very
24 closely and anything we need from them, they're always
25 there for us, but we do have access to their camera

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 27

1 feeds.

2 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHÉ: Any other questions
3 or comments? Yes, Commissioner Bell.

4 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, Madam Chair. Crime
5 Intelligence Unit. Organized crime.

6 CAPTAIN SLOAN: Yes.

7 COMMISSIONER BELL: Talk to me about
8 organized crime. Do we still have organized crime?

9 CAPTAIN SLOAN: We have organized crime,
10 yes.

11 COMMISSIONER BELL: Do we have organized
12 crime unit or something that monitor how that works at
13 the federal level completely?

14 CAPTAIN SLOAN: Yes.

15 DEPUTY CHIEF BETTISON: Deputy Chief
16 Bettison. Yes, we still have that unit. And that
17 doesn't fall up under our realtime crime unit purview,
18 but Commander Bryant, that falls up under -- it does
19 fall up under our organized crime. We do have a
20 component of that and I can bring that unit before you
21 to provide a presentation as well. But the folks to
22 speak directly to that they're not present in the room
23 at this time.

24 COMMISSIONER BELL: Okay. We appreciate it
25 I don't hear that much about organized crimes since I've

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 28

1 been sitting here. I thought it went away.

2 DEPUTY CHIEF BETTISON: Oh absolutely not.

3 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: That would be great
4 if we could schedule something in the future. I -- any
5 other comments or questions?

6 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yeah, I have one. Go
7 ahead.

8 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Go ahead, I'll do
9 mine last.

10 COMMISSIONER BURCH: I just wanted to ask.
11 I think everybody in here realizes that criminals are
12 drawn to dark places, filthy places, unkempt places. My
13 is about gas stations with the Green Light. Have you
14 ever considered partnering perhaps to put something in
15 the area those that have Green Lights, even if it's a
16 post-it sign. I want to ask Deputy chief Bettison is he
17 aware of the signs in Detroit throughout the city it
18 says please keep Detroit beautiful. They're all around
19 the east side and west side. If these signs were posted
20 in so many feet of that gas station, do you think that
21 would encourage the gas station owners to keep it clean?
22 Again, they're dark and they're dirty. What do you
23 think?

24 CAPTAIN SLOAN: Part of the requirements for
25 a business to be in Project Green Light is to increase

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 29

1 and improve their lighting at their business, as well as
2 keep their business clean, so if there's ever a time
3 when one of the NPOs is out and they notice that a
4 business is not in compliance, we have a whole process
5 in place that they can out and speak with the business
6 owner, but I do think that would be helpful. If you're
7 making people aware of the expectations and then we have
8 camera feeds there to back that up, I think that would
9 be very useful. But we also, and I didn't speak about
10 it, but we also run a dumping camera project. We have
11 covert cameras throughout the city where we're finding
12 people who are illegally dumping in the city.

13 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yeah, I'm aware of
14 that, too but just wanted to bring that suggestion to
15 you. So would you look into that and find out where
16 these signs out in and how the signs are and see would
17 that promote the Green Light properties.

18 CAPTAIN SLOAN: Yes, ma'am.

19 COMMISSIONER BURCH: I still would like for
20 you to go further into those signs. Thank you.

21 CAPTAIN SLOAN: Okay.

22 DEPUTY CHIEF BETTISON: Through the chair,
23 Commissioner Burch that would fall up under my shot with
24 the neighborhood police officers and I definitely will
25 look for those signs and with our Green Light I want to

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 30

1 make this clear to the community, they have to stay in
2 compliance and our Green Light partners we do thorough
3 inspections before we allow them to be a partner. They
4 have to be a good neighbor, as the chief would say, and
5 if they're not, we will reject them because before we
6 put our stamp of approval on them; we're not going to
7 just partner with anybody and just because you meet the
8 standard, you have to maintain that standard and if
9 you're not maintaining the standard that we set forth to
10 be a Green Light partner through the memorandum of
11 understanding that they sign, we will pull that light
12 right off of that business and move forward. But we
13 will definitely check into the signs and thank you,
14 Commissioner Burch for even before you were a
15 commissioner out there with the citizens organizing,
16 demanding that some of those businesses in the community
17 that you felt were unsafe, that they get with the
18 program and join Project Green Light, so thank you.

19 COMMISSIONER BURCH: You're welcome.

20 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. I just
21 have a real quick question. You had on the list Wayne
22 State University you have the center for urban studies.
23 Why would it jut be the center for urban studies?

24 CAPTAIN SLOAN: That's our partnership with
25 Dr. Martin. He is from that specific area at Wayne

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 31

1 State and he assists us with statistical information.

2 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Okay. So Wayne
3 State as a university totally is not a partner, it's
4 just that center for that specific purpose?

5 CAPTAIN SLOAN: I wouldn't say that
6 specifically. I don't know that.

7 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: All right. I was
8 just curious. Thank you. Any other questions or
9 comments?

10 DEPUTY CHIEF BETTISON: I would just say.

11 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Go ahead.

12 DEPUTY CHIEF BETTISON: I would just say
13 through the chair that, you know, Wayne State University
14 has been a true partner to the department, has really I
15 mean just stepped up in so many different ways. I can't
16 even describe through offering scholarships for members
17 of our department. They have a chief scholarship where
18 they actually pay for master level degrees for two
19 members of the department and they do so much for us.
20 They just partnered in and we have some of our executive
21 team in a leadership academy through the Mike Ilitch
22 school of business through Wayne State University. So
23 Wayne State is doing much and they want to do a lot more
24 because they're right here centered in our core of
25 Detroit. So just kudos to Wayne State.

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 32

1 VICE CHAIR DEWAEELSCHÉ: Thank you for that
2 additional information. Secretary Hicks?

3 MR. HICKS: Yes, Madam Chair if I can just
4 simply make a request. You had asked us to generally
5 keep abreast to the Green Light locations and to send
6 out to each of the commissioners copies of the list of
7 Green Lights. Last list we received was probably just
8 south of 150 locations. The data's report indicates
9 there's 300 locations, so I'm sure that they exist. I'm
10 not raising that but I would hope that the department
11 can restart sending us that information. We haven't
12 received a report with a list of Green Lights for at
13 least a few months now, so I would hope that we can
14 continue that.

15 VICE CHAIR DEWAEELSCHÉ: Yes, and I agree
16 with that it would help those that represent certain
17 districts to know which businesses are Green Light
18 participants and also to advocate for those that are
19 not.

20 CAPTAIN SLOAN: Absolutely. I'll make sure
21 that gets to you.

22 VICE CHAIR DEWAEELSCHÉ: Comments or
23 questions? Hearing none then thank you so much for that
24 presentation.

25 CAPTAIN SLOAN: Thank you have a good

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 33

1 afternoon.

2 DEPUTY CHIEF BETTISON: Great job, Sloan.

3 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: And at this point
4 we'll go to the standing and ad hoc committee reports.
5 Are there any by the commissioners?

6 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Yes.

7 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Commissioner Brooks.

8 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Recruiting committee
9 met the other day and we really concentrated on venues
10 where to recruit, field recruiting, and recruiting
11 process. And the reason we talked about recruiting
12 process is because we don't want to lose these young
13 men. Once we get out there and work hard to recruit
14 them in, we want to learn about the process so we can
15 keep them in. We want to prepare the students to keep
16 them ongoing in this process. Do they need -- what do
17 they need to help them? I'm not interested in what
18 reading level they are at. It had to be good because
19 they made it into the process. So we had a very lively
20 discussion on how we can help these young people. Our
21 vendors was pretty good. Sergeant Starr's very good at
22 on her own looking for places to recruit. However, we
23 have some new places. We have the mow town museum
24 founders day, which is April the 25th from 10 to 6.
25 Sergeant Starr and I just met this new police person and

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 34

1 I don't remember her name but we met with mow town
2 people museum at the museum yesterday. And I'm very
3 excited about this, because this is the founder's day;
4 everyone knows that Esther Gordy Edwards found the mow
5 town museum. It's going to be all day. There are going
6 to be people from everywhere. There's going to be
7 music, dancing, food, and other vendors. And they are
8 very happy to have the police department recruiting
9 table set up, so we feel very good about that.

10 We've been going to Job Corps, but we're
11 going to go back. We have Sacred Heart annual bizarre,
12 which we missed last year; we had the opportunity, but
13 we missed but we won't miss this year. I've kind of
14 come up with something new and they agreed. The city of
15 Detroit Department of Neighborhoods has a manager for
16 each district and I'm going to meet -- I've already set
17 up one meeting -- each one, each manager to talk about
18 how we can get into deep into their community. Where
19 can we set up a recruiting table? How is it -- what's
20 the best way to go about doing this? We also have a
21 Detroit public school community district two annual's
22 day that thank you for giving us that. I'm looking at
23 you and your name just went right out of my mind.

24 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Attorney Warwick.

25 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Attorney, yes. Thank

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 35

1 you. So our meeting was very fruitful, very helpful but
2 we can recruit but we want to keep them. We don't want
3 to lose as many as we do and the person I'm looking at
4 now in our audience who gave us a very good suggestion
5 that we do flyers with young men and women on the flyers
6 that's in the process. Another thing came up that
7 everywhere we go we should have flyers to hand out. We
8 should have a recruiting table the second Thursday of
9 each month, even if I have to man it. Because I want to
10 go back to that community and we really, really need to
11 go to our communities to get these people for our new
12 police officers. So we're very pleased about our
13 meeting and we have all these things in process and we
14 realize that you can field recruit but I'm going to keep
15 saying this don't lose them in the process down the
16 line. Nowhere. And I don't -- did I miss anything? Do
17 you think we covered everything?

18 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHÉ: No. Covered
19 everything.

20 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Everywhere I speak I
21 ask do you have any place where we can recruit because
22 it is very, very important to continue to get police.
23 We're not doing what the mayor wants; we only did it
24 once and I keep saying that; we're trying to build back
25 up to 40 and I want to thank Commissioner Bell for

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 36

1 facing police shortage; Detroit seeks to stop new cops
2 from jumping ship. We like this and we're supporting it
3 and we hope everybody support this. It's in Lansing
4 right now. And also thank you, Commissioner, they're
5 having a solute to Detroit public 9th and 11th precinct
6 event to honor our fallen heros in the police and
7 military Saturday May the 19th and...

8 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: 12 to 5.

9 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Yes, 12 to 5. It's
10 going to be entertainment, food, refreshments and a lot
11 of things. Oh it's at the Dad Butler Park, which is
12 2034 East 8 Mile Road and she just called me all day
13 with this and I'm -- I apologize for not getting back to
14 you sooner. So we can have a recruiting table there.
15 And one of the other things I would like is that every
16 time we meet in a community we need a stack of flyers to
17 hand out even when we meet here we need to have flyers
18 in the back to hand out to people. Thank you.

19 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Thank you,
20 Commissioner Brooks. I would like to ask Commissioner
21 Bell if you would just elaborate a little bit about the
22 bill that Commissioner Brooks brought up and maybe
23 provide a little bit of detail so that the community is
24 aware.

25 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: I passed this out.

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 37

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: Very good, okay. I
2 can't say enough about our recruiting team. They really
3 do a fantastic job and the house bill, which we
4 mentioned at community meeting at our last week meeting
5 is house bill 5540, that's house bill 5540, sponsored by
6 representative Sylvia Santana out of District 6 on the
7 west side of Detroit; is that right?

8 VICE CHAIR DEWAELESCHE: Yes.

9 COMMISSIONER BELL: And we asked you to look
10 this bill up and it talked about the shortage of
11 officers leaving Detroit after we going to graduate a
12 class next month, it's going to be a large class. But
13 in that process this bill impact if the officers leave
14 when in five years, there be some type of financial
15 recourse for the city to recoup some of that salary
16 benefits they receive. And my understanding it cost
17 approximately \$80,000 to train a officer and we certify
18 these officers, as you well know, and we also identify
19 that they are leaving like for Warren PD and Sterling
20 Heights, two of the major department, and we are one of
21 three training academy. Other one is Macomb Community
22 College and Michigan State Police here the parking lot
23 for training.

24 So you can see that if we try to impact
25 that, I think this is a bill that perhaps we had tried

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 38

1 other avenues to try to address this issue over the last
2 15, 20 years. So this might be some life if we lobby
3 for this bill. So we need you to join us in terms of
4 lobbying and that's a significant amount of money for
5 training to be certified to be Detroit's finest and then
6 leave within five years; and I see most of these career
7 officers here most of you stay 20 plus years and we need
8 to have the DPOA and leadership Mark young, the LSA, and
9 others to talk about the other criteria of retention.
10 So we know there's not just a salary, there are other
11 areas of benefits so they need to come before us to make
12 sure that they enlighten us because they represent those
13 officers who are leaving and maybe we can address those
14 concerns.

15 And we've been lobbying for increased wages
16 and all that, benefits, but there are some other
17 underlying reasoning for officers not staying the
18 course. And by all means we -- if a person can advance
19 themselves, we wish them the best but we are concerned
20 about the money we invest into them for that amount of
21 money and they leaving in that short period of time, so
22 we don't get our investment out and we would love for
23 them to stay; if we can make it more attractive, for
24 whatever reason, I don't know but I just -- when I heard
25 that Warren PD is and Sterling Heights is the major two

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 39

1 department that we are training and certifying for that
2 concerns me. So Commissioner Brooks and Commissioner
3 Dewaelsche is doing everything, and the department's
4 doing everything to recruit. But we have to look at
5 retention so I cannot emphasize enough this is a very,
6 very important deal that we need to lobby and speak to.
7 I'm hoping that even our staff DPD will lobby 'cause
8 this bill is not just Detroit this is a bill before the
9 house, as you well know; it's a issue before that we all
10 should be concerned about, so let us try to look it up
11 and try to lobby, telephone call, text and communicate,
12 let them know that we are concerned and perhaps promote
13 it. Thank you, Madam Chair.

14 VICE CHAIR DEWAEELSCHE: Thank you,
15 Commissioner Bell.

16 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: I just want to add
17 that also our officers get paid. So not only do we pay
18 for them to get training they get paid also. So it's
19 they come here and they get all this for themselves and
20 they leave. And they go somewhere else because perhaps
21 the pay is higher. So there are a lot of things that
22 we're looking into. Thank you.

23 VICE CHAIR DEWAEELSCHE: Thank you,
24 Commissioner.

25 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Yeah, Madam Chair. I

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 40

1 just want to say to the audience and since this meeting
2 is televised I'm just making a plea to people out there
3 listening, because there's a few of you sitting here but
4 we need to start spreading the good news about our city.
5 We need to start building up Detroit, build up our
6 police department. That's what's most important as far
7 as this bill. When we were at Peace Baptist Church last
8 week this was brought up about this from Santana, what's
9 her name Santana?

10 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Representative
11 Santana.

12 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Representative Santana
13 brought that up so this bill 5540 everybody should write
14 that down, go to your church pastor, pass that news out
15 to the congregation. You've got to get an audience
16 that's sitting right there to be able to get this bill
17 passed. We have to promote ourselves. When you promote
18 ourselves, you promote Detroit. You promote the young
19 people out there that do not know what to do. The
20 millennial children that are out there it's just too
21 much quiet about Detroit. Detroit is a beautiful city.
22 We must work together to make it better. And we can do
23 that if we become a team. Knowing good things pass it
24 around, that's what's good about commissioner, and I
25 thank her, Commissioner Brooks for talking about May

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 41

1 19th. May 19th is to suit all officers, no matter what
2 your rank, no matter what your department. I'm talking
3 from military, state police, anybody but we're focused
4 on Detroit, because there have been so many lives that
5 have been lost. Just ridiculous. So we want to make an
6 effort to say thank you. We want May 19th to be an
7 event that all departments you're sitting out there; you
8 know somebody. Bring your department to the table;
9 bring your resources to the table to inform the public.
10 They don't know if we don't tell them. It's too much
11 good that goes on with this board right here and with
12 you sitting there to help teach our young people and the
13 people that will never know a thing unless we tell them.
14 I thank you.

15 VICE CHAIR DEWAEELSCHÉ: Thank you,
16 Commissioner Burch. Commissioner Brown, did you have
17 something?

18 COMMISSIONER BROWN: No.

19 VICE CHAIR DEWAEELSCHÉ: Thank you. Next we
20 have our board secretary report.

21 MR. HICKS: Thank you, Madam Chair. Simply
22 want to draw your attention to the seven items listed on
23 the agenda. They are largely incoming communications.
24 Much of them we've already touched on in the early
25 portions of the meeting. There's no particular reason

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 42

1 for me to elaborate on them other than simply to call
2 your attention to that. If you have specific questions
3 in connection with this or any other business of the
4 office, please I'm available to respond to questions.

5 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHÉ: Thank you. Are
6 there any questions? Commissioner Bell.

7 COMMISSIONER BELL: Madam Chair, I just want
8 to thank Mr. Hicks and the team of the board and OCI for
9 the work they put into. I know we say it every now and
10 then. I just want to take this opportunity to thank
11 them for it's just been a drastic change and some of us
12 been familiar with the board since 1974 and then the
13 last year or so we seen a drastic change in terms of
14 administration of the board and the staff, so I just
15 want to commend Mr. Hicks and the entire chief
16 investigator and entire staff that's in attendance and
17 convey that to others. We really appreciate the work
18 you put into because as Commissioner Brooks say, I now
19 feel proud to be a commissioner. So we are doing so
20 much.

21 And so those who have witnessed, and you was
22 here before, we have very limited staff. So we come a
23 long way in taking on our charter mandate responsibility
24 and chief always brag about his team. Well I want to
25 brag about our team. But we work together for the

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 43

1 spirit of Detroit in terms of public safety. And that's
2 what you hear that compassion for providing the number
3 one issue in America in public safety. The number one
4 issue is public safety. And when you hear about what
5 the captain reporting out and how we trying to respond
6 but it's also about you being good neighbors. You being
7 good people. And this city as Commissioner Burch talked
8 about we shouldn't have to ask people to clean up. But
9 it's necessary because I travel to other cities,
10 especially in the south, and they have clean cities. So
11 that behoves us to encourage our front yard, our back
12 yard, and our neighborhood just don't put it on the
13 business people. 'Cause I see people come out of those
14 stores and what do they do? I see them coming out and
15 what do they do? I see them in their car and what do
16 they do? Their unrolling their stuff so we need to say
17 that. The department got enough responsibility, so we
18 need to really being good neighbors. Thank you, Madam
19 Chair.

20 VICE CHAIR DEWAEELSCHÉ: Thank you,
21 Commissioner. Any other questions or comments? Hearing
22 none then is there any old business to come before the
23 board? Any old business? Announcements, our next
24 meeting is Thursday April 26th at 3 p.m. here at Detroit
25 public safety headquarters, 1301 Third Street in Detroit

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 44

1 and then our next community meeting is Thursday, May
2 10th at 6:30. It's in the 8th precinct at the DPD 8th
3 precinct auditorium, which is located on 21555 West
4 McNichols in Detroit. At this time we're moving the
5 oral communications and public comments section. Please
6 give -- limit your comments to two minutes and Mr. Brown
7 could you tell us who's coming up?

8 MR. BROWN: I currently have four cards.
9 Your first speaker is Mrs. Faith, followed by Mr. Eric
10 Blount.

11 VICE CHAIR DEWAELESCHE: Thank you.

12 MRS. FAITH: My name is Mrs. Faith. I've
13 been coming to the board meetings for about a year I
14 guess it's been and I've not been down by anyone, not in
15 any way at all, and your dignity and respect to how you
16 treat the citizens that come, whether they're with the
17 board, on the board, or police officers or whatever, the
18 condition -- I mean situation is or the level of duties
19 has been is always been straight across the board. And
20 I've always been able to commend you very highly and
21 it's not a put-on it's just from my heart. It's what
22 I've been seeing; it's what I've been hearing. The new
23 members that have come aboard, Commissioner Burch and
24 Commissioner Davis, I've been seeing ya'all and both of
25 ya'all have astounded me even before you came on board.

DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018

Page 45

1 I commend you very highly both of you.

2 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Thank you.

3 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Thank you.

4 MRS. FAITH: I miss also Commissioner

5 Sanders and the good work that he did. And going to go

6 back to what -- I don't know how to say this about the

7 charter system. But I believe that ya'all should

8 receive because of your conduct and your speech and with

9 the community that come in, the complaints that have

10 come across, across the board very balance. Sensitive

11 matters, very balanced. Everything very balanced. Even

12 the correction face to face, even in the audience face

13 to face very balanced. Professional. Always above

14 board, straight as an arrow. I have nothing to say but

15 I can say I commend all of you very highly. It's just

16 like a silver sword that's double edged when pressed

17 down to correct, cutting back on the self. Policing

18 back and forth. Continue the good work that you're

19 doing and Chief Bettison you're doing the same thing.

20 Everybody always very balanced. You all keep up the

21 good work; keep up -- I'm very impressed by you every

22 time. For a year the same thing; it's got to be; it's

23 not put on. For a year and for years before me being

24 here the same thing. I thank ya'all for ya'all identity

25 by back and forth with me. Keep it up; you're doing a

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 46

1 good job.

2 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHÉ: Thank you very much
3 for your comments.

4 MR. BROWN: Mr. Eric Blount followed by Mr.
5 Samuel Miller.

6 MR. BLOUNT: Good afternoon, board. For the
7 record my name is Eric Blount. I'm a life long
8 Detroiter. I have two concerns. One is the description
9 by the FBI last year of Detroit being the most violent
10 big city and in that report the chief of police did
11 provide a rebuttal because there was some differences in
12 the numbers and how they were counted, so I'd just like
13 to know, for one, are the crime statistics that the
14 police report are they in line now with the FBI's
15 reporting statistics, so we don't get into this who's
16 right and who's wrong as far as the crime statistics go?

17 My second point is that more and more
18 communities in the city are becoming SAD. And I say SAD
19 it's just an acronym for Special Assessment Districts
20 where -- and I happen to be one of those communities
21 that have them. So I'd like to believe we are partially
22 to give credit for the decrease in crime. We put as a
23 Special Assessment District we agree that hundreds of
24 dollars a year will be added to our property taxes for
25 one of many things private security forces that are also

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 47

1 armed. So a lot of times we go to our private security
2 forces before we go to the police to resolve things
3 before they come -- become a police report. Thank you.

4 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHÉ: Thank you very much.
5 Are there any comments or -- yes, D.C.

6 DEPUTY CHIEF BETTISON: Through the chair to
7 answer your question regarding our crime statistics and
8 are they in line; absolutely, they are in line. We've
9 invested a lot in our records management system. We
10 made a multimillion dollar investment in our systems and
11 if you go back to the reports you'll hear the chief when
12 you referenced our Crisnet system. It was bad when we
13 bought it before he got here. We've upgraded that; we
14 have a new records management system, a new CAD system
15 and our stuff is in line right now. So you should
16 not -- no one should hear those reports ever again. And
17 the chief just recently met with Michigan State Police
18 colonel and that was the one of the topics of
19 discussions and our stuff is in alignment because from
20 the Detroit Police Department and all local police
21 departments it goes to actually the state and then the
22 state transfers it to the FBI. So it's in alignment.

23 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHÉ: Thank you. I would
24 like to add to his question. Are we reconciling those
25 numbers on -- in a timely manner like is it quarterly,

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 48

1 monthly or when -- how often do we reconcile those
2 numbers with the FBI numbers?

3 DEPUTY CHIEF BETTISON: Right now it's a
4 daily function, so we have our folks scrubbing those
5 numbers daily to make sure that they're being
6 categorized in the right manner and fashion so we pay
7 particular attention to that. We actually have a unit
8 that where we have individuals -- I can't think of the
9 unit right now -- but they handle that. They're located
10 up on the actually the 6th floor and Lieutenant Shelly
11 Edgars (sic) is in charge of that and she is definitely
12 a task master and ensures that the job does get done.
13 And then also I want to give kudos. The community
14 support every little bit helps. We can't take all the
15 credit. But that's why I thank the community, so when
16 you talk about the Special Assessment Districts what you
17 do definitely counts. Our radio controls count, our
18 block club captains out there help, the extra eyes and
19 ears. It all counts, so we all can take credit for the
20 trending down of our crime of the city of Detroit and
21 nor do we wave the white flag of success. We got a lot
22 of work to do but we're going to keep on at it. Thank
23 you.

24 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Thank you, chief.
25 Any other -- thank you so much, sir.

DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018

Page 49

1 MR. HICKS: Mr. Samuel Miller followed by
2 Mr. Lee Yancy.

3 MR. MILLER: Good afternoon. On March 16th
4 I attended an event called the THC expo on Nevada in
5 Detroit. It was in regards for THC owners medical
6 marijuana caregivers promoting their businesses and I'm
7 an advocate for legalization of it, so I came there to
8 support it. I was only intending to stay for about five
9 minutes, five, ten minutes just to see what was going on
10 and next thing I know it was a raid; a big raid. So I
11 complied; I laid down along with everyone else. I'm a
12 licensed CPL holder as well, so I announced to the
13 officer that was closest to me, hey, I'm a licensed CPL
14 holder. I have my firearm on me, just giving you a
15 heads on. So, you know, he confiscated it; he did his
16 job. That was perfectly fine. But the problem arose
17 afterwards when everything disappeared.

18 So I followed proper procedure. I waited
19 the right amount of time. I called the courts downtown
20 I talked to everyone possible. They are saying my name
21 is not in the records yet and they're saying it's
22 supposed to be in there. I talked to several important
23 people whose names I'm not going to, you know, release
24 but they've even told me my name is supposed to be in
25 the records by then. So I went to the 11th precinct who

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 50

1 was in charge of that raid. Not only was I treated very
2 rudely; me as a man, I like to shake the person's hand
3 and say my name when I speak to them. They didn't even
4 want to shake my hand; I feel like you shouldn't be in a
5 community where you scared of the citizens. I'm a
6 professional, I'm a businessman. I don't come off as a
7 threat to anyone. And they looked like they were
8 ashamed to even shake my hand; like I didn't appreciate
9 that. That's a side bar. But they gave me the number
10 to gang squad who they said was in charge of that raid.
11 I called them; I called them last week. They said
12 nothing about me was in the records. I still have the
13 ticket from the proof of that day and he said to call
14 back, which was yesterday, same time. I called back.
15 This brother Sergeant Smith was very rude to me. Very
16 rude to me. Disrespectful. And I remained calm; I
17 remained professional. And my name is nowhere in the
18 books. The problem with that is I don't know where my
19 firearm is. The ticket is nowhere in the system. I
20 need to know what to do. And I was told to come to you
21 guys and maybe you guys could help me. I would really
22 like to know what to do.

23 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Do you have -- did you
24 say you were issued a ticket?

25 MR. MILLER: Yes.

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 51

1 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Do you have a copy of
2 it?

3 MR. MILLER: Yes.

4 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Chief investigator
5 Polly McCalister she'll handle the complaint for you and
6 investigate it.

7 CHIEF INVESTIGATOR MCCALISTER: We'll talk
8 about it.

9 MR. MILLER: Thank you I really appreciate
10 that. Oh I heard you mention Sacred Heart; I'm a member
11 as well.

12 COMMISSIONER BROOKS: I know you are.

13 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. Any
14 other questions or comments? Just a second, Mr. Brown.

15 COMMISSIONER BURCH: I just want to comment
16 to the young man because he say it was from precinct
17 number 11. We will take care of that, sir. Just want
18 to say that.

19 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Thank you.

20 MR. BROWN: Mr. Lee Yancy, and Madam Chair
21 that will be your last speaker.

22 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Thank you.

23 MR. YANCY: Good afternoon. Lee Yancy,
24 business owner in District 2, on avenue of fashion.
25 Just wanted to say that I'm pleased with the work that

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 52

1 the board is doing and the relationship that they have
2 with the police department. I've noticed since the
3 Green Lights have gone up in my area, crime has gone
4 down and my customers have let me know. So I just
5 wanted to come and let the board know that I appreciate
6 the job that's being done. Thank you.

7 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. We
8 appreciate you're coming down just to tell us that good
9 news. That's wonderful. Thank you.

10 MR. BROWN: That was your last speaker,
11 Madam Chair.

12 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. At this
13 time I'd like to ask if there is a motion so that we can
14 go into closed session?

15 COMMISSIONER BROWN: So moved.

16 COMMISSIONER BURCH: Second.

17 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: It's been moved and
18 seconded. All those in favor indicate by saying aye.

19 ALL: Aye.

20 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Opposed? Thank you.

21 MR. HICKS: Madam Chair, if I can we do need
22 to read the purpose of the motion into the record. So
23 the motion would be to go into closed session to pick up
24 a request for suspension without pay for officer -- I
25 mean for DPD personnel Timothy Leach.

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 53

1 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. Okay.

2 So motion carried and we're going into closed session.

3 We will be back if you choose to stay. Thank you.

4 (Off the record at 4:09 p.m.)

5 (Back on the record at 5:19 p.m.)

6 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. Is there
7 a motion to reconvene our meeting?

8 COMMISSIONER BELL: I so move, Madam Chair.

9 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Support.

10 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: It's been moved and
11 supported. All those in favor indicate by saying aye.

12 ALL: Aye.

13 MR. HICKS: Madam Chair, the motion passes.

14 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: Thank you.

15 Commissioners, we have before us a request to change the
16 duty status to suspension without pay for Lieutenant
17 Timothy Leach assigned to the 11th precinct. This
18 request came to the Board of Police Commissioners from
19 Chief Craig. Is there a motion to support the request?
20 Hearing none, then, is there a motion to adjourn the
21 meeting?

22 COMMISSIONER BELL: Madam Chair, if there's
23 no other business, I move that we adjourn this meeting.

24 COMMISSIONER BROWN: Support.

25 VICE CHAIR DEWAELSCHE: It's been moved and

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Page 54

1 supported. All those in favor indicate by saying aye.

2 ALL: Aye.

3 VICE CHAIR DEWAELESCHE: Thank you. Thank
4 you for being here.

5 (Meeting concluded at 5:20 p.m.)

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018

1 STATE OF MICHIGAN)
2)
3 COUNTY OF WASHTENAW)

4
5 CERTIFICATE OF NOTARY PUBLIC AND COURT REPORTER

6 I, Caitlyn Mancini, do hereby certify that the
7 above-entitled meeting was duly recorded by me
8 stenographically and by me later reduced to typewritten
9 form by means of computer-aided transcription; and I
10 certify that this is a true and correct transcript of my
11 stenographic notes so taken.

12 I further certify that I am neither of counsel to
13 either party nor interested in the event of this cause.

14
15
16 



17 Caitlyn Mancini, RPR, CSR-8887

18 Notary Public,

19 Washtenaw County, Michigan

20 My Commission expires: August 15, 2021

21
22
23
24
25

DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018

A

abide 15:9
ability 20:21
21:17
able 20:14 23:24
40:16 44:20
aboard 44:23
above-entitled
55:7
abreast 32:5
absolutely 6:9
19:23 28:2
32:20 47:8
academy 31:21
37:21
access 21:19
25:21 26:20,23
26:25
accommodate
11:14
accountability
9:9
achieved 14:24
achieving 16:18
acronym 46:19
act 10:11 11:13
13:19,25
action 11:19
13:9
actionable 22:5
activity 7:14
ad 33:4
add 17:7 39:16
47:24
added 46:24
adding 25:1
addition 20:7
additional 8:12
26:22 32:2
address 9:25
12:5 38:1,13
adequate 17:22
adjourn 53:20,23
adjusted 11:15
adjustment 11:16
11:22
administered
7:14
administration
42:14

advance 38:18
advanced 21:11
advisors 10:11
advocate 14:25
32:18 49:7
mentioned
11:22
afternoon 4:5
7:25 12:8
18:14 20:2
33:1 46:6 49:3
51:23
agenda 5:10
11:15,23 16:11
41:23
Aggravated 16:25
ago 22:14
agree 32:15
46:23
agreed 23:16
34:14
ahead 28:7,8
31:11
aid 20:17
alignment 47:19
47:22
alleviates 11:17
allow 30:3
allowed 11:12
allows 9:8 11:5
America 43:3
amount 19:15
38:4,20 49:19
analysis 21:25
22:8 23:4
analysts 23:22
analytic 21:19
analytical 21:14
analytics 20:22
analyze 20:13
announced 49:12
Announcements
43:23
annual 34:11
annual's 34:21
answer 47:7
anybody 30:7
41:3
anymore 13:19
apologize 36:13
appeal 9:9

appointed 9:13
13:16 14:12,19
appointee 14:10
appointment 9:21
12:6 13:10
appointments
9:18 14:6
appreciate 26:15
27:24 42:17
50:8 51:9 52:5
52:8
apprehend 20:17
appropriate
13:10
approval 12:18
12:25 14:2
30:6
approve 5:11,19
9:18 13:1 15:3
15:18 16:4
approved 12:20
approximately
37:17
April 1:11 4:2
5:10,19 13:11
33:24 43:24
area 17:13 28:15
30:25 52:3
areas 38:11
armed 47:1
arose 49:16
arrow 45:14
ashamed 50:8
asked 10:10 32:4
37:9
assault 16:25
18:7 19:7
assaults 18:4,10
18:13 19:10
assessment 22:9
46:19,23 48:16
asset 24:2
assets 22:19
assigned 53:17
assist 10:9
20:14
assistant 14:1,2
assists 31:1
assume 14:18
astounded 44:25
at-large 2:3,8

5:3
attend 4:8
attendance 42:16
attended 49:4
attending 4:10
8:2
attention 25:2
41:22 42:2
48:7
Attorney 34:24
34:25
attractive 38:23
audience 6:3
11:24 15:15
35:4 40:1,15
45:12
audio 7:14 20:7
20:24
auditorium 44:3
audits 21:3
24:22
August 55:20
authority 9:18
9:24 12:10,24
available 21:9
42:4
avenue 1:13
51:24
avenues 38:1
average 17:13
19:1 24:3,7
AVERT 20:25 21:2
aware 28:17 29:7
29:13 36:24
aye 5:15,16,23
5:24 15:25
16:1 52:18,19
53:11,12 54:1
54:2

B

babies 26:10
back 7:22 12:2
14:23,25 29:8
34:11 35:10,24
36:13,18 43:11
45:6,17,18,25
47:11 50:14,14
53:3,5
bad 47:12
balance 7:24

DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018

45:10
balanced 45:11
45:11,13,20
bandwidth 23:18
Banks 8:4
Baptist 8:19
40:7
bar 50:9
Bart 7:3
based 13:25
beautiful 28:18
40:21
becoming 46:18
beginning 16:5
23:15 25:14
behalf 4:9 8:9
9:23
behoves 43:11
believe 24:14
45:7 46:21
Bell 2:6 4:17,19
5:1,1,13 9:16
9:25 12:5,7
15:11 16:5,9
17:17 27:3,4,7
27:11,24 35:25
36:21 37:1,9
39:15 42:6,7
53:8,22
benefit 11:7
benefits 37:16
38:11,16
best 9:2 34:20
38:19
better 10:25
40:22
Bettison 3:14
6:6,9 7:2,8
10:10 16:13,14
17:25 18:6
19:5 25:12
27:15,16 28:2
28:16 29:22
31:10,12 33:2
45:19 47:6
48:3
big 22:13,15
46:10 49:10
bill 36:22 37:3
37:5,5,10,13
37:25 38:3

39:8,8 40:7,13
40:16
bit 36:21,23
48:14
bizarre 34:11
block 25:13
48:18
Blossom 7:19
Blount 44:10
46:4,6,7
board 1:9 4:7,10
4:10 7:11 8:1
8:9,13,20,22
9:4 10:8,13,14
11:25 12:5,12
12:13,15,18,20
12:22,24 13:9
13:15,25 14:2
14:15 15:2,3,7
15:12,18 19:25
41:11,20 42:8
42:12,14 43:23
44:13,17,17,19
44:25 45:10,14
46:6 52:1,5
53:18
board's 9:18
books 50:18
bought 47:13
brag 42:24,25
Brenda 15:10
Bridget 7:21
bring 9:4 10:7
13:9 18:11
27:20 29:14
41:8,9
bringing 18:23
Brooks 2:8 5:2,2
5:20 33:6,7,8
34:25 35:20
36:9,20,22,25
39:2,16 40:25
42:18 51:12
brother 50:15
brought 15:2
36:22 40:8,13
Brown 2:4 4:24
4:24 5:12,21
7:17 12:3 26:1
26:2 41:16,18
44:6,8 46:4

50:23 51:1,4
51:14,20 52:10
52:15 53:9,24
Bryant 6:18,18
27:18
build 35:24 40:5
building 40:5
Burch 2:5 5:4,4
15:22 25:10,23
28:6,10 29:13
29:19,23 30:14
30:19 39:25
40:12 41:16
43:7 44:23
45:3 51:15
52:16
bureau 6:17
burglary 17:4
business 28:25
29:1,2,4,5
30:12 31:22
42:3 43:13,22
43:23 51:24
53:23
businesses 21:4
23:10,11,25
24:5,6,8,10,16
24:19,22 25:6
26:14 30:16
32:17 49:6
businessman 50:6
Butler 36:11

C

cable 4:11
CAD 47:14
Caitlyn 7:15
55:6,17
calendar 10:14
call 14:13 39:11
42:1 50:13
Callaway 8:5
called 36:12
49:4,19 50:11
50:11,14
calls 23:24 24:7
calm 50:16
camera 21:5,16
22:19 24:20,23
25:21 26:23,25
29:8,10

cameras 17:7
21:15 23:16
29:11
candidates 10:8
capacity 25:3
captain 6:11,12
6:12,14,14,20
6:20,24,24
18:8,11,14,14
19:11,23 20:2
20:2 25:19
26:2,15,22
27:6,9,14
28:24 29:18,21
30:24 31:5
32:20,25 43:5
captains 13:2
48:18
car 43:15
card 12:1,3
cards 12:1 44:8
care 51:17
career 38:6
caregivers 49:6
carjacking 16:24
carried 53:2
carries 5:18
Carter 4:8
case 13:14
cases 17:12
categories 17:3
categorized 48:6
category 16:22
16:23 18:7,9,9
19:2
cause 39:7 43:13
55:13
center 10:20,21
10:23,23 11:4
20:1,19 21:9
21:11,21,24
22:2 24:1 25:5
26:3 30:22,23
31:4
centered 31:24
certain 32:16
CERTIFICATE 55:5
certified 38:5
certify 37:17
55:6,10,12
certifying 39:1

DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018

chair 2:3 4:5,7
4:7,15,17,21
5:8,9,14,17,22
5:25 7:1,7,9
7:12 8:7 12:7
13:12 15:19,20
15:23 16:2,3,7
16:10,21 17:23
18:1,15 19:20
19:24 25:8,25
26:17 27:2,4
28:3,8 29:22
30:20 31:2,7
31:11,13 32:1
32:3,15,22
33:3,7 34:24
35:18 36:8,19
37:8 39:13,14
39:23,25 40:10
41:15,19,21
42:5,7 43:19
43:20 44:11
46:2 47:4,6,23
48:24 51:13,19
51:20,22 52:7
52:11,12,17,20
52:21 53:1,6,8
53:10,13,14,22
53:25 54:3
chair's 6:1
Chambers 6:20,20
change 14:5
42:11,13 53:15
changed 14:7
changes 12:24
24:9
channel 4:12
chaplain 4:13,16
charge 48:11
50:1,10
charter 9:17
12:10 13:8,25
14:4,20 15:8
15:11,12 42:23
45:7
charter's 13:24
check 30:13
chief 3:12,14
6:7,9,14 7:2,8
8:1,11,25 9:12
9:13 11:10,12

12:16,22 13:3
13:3,5,7,8,21
14:1,2,3,25
15:1,3,4,5,6
16:11,13,13,14
17:25 18:6
19:5 25:12,12
27:15,15 28:2
28:16 29:22
30:4 31:10,12
31:17 33:2
42:15,24 45:19
46:10 47:6,11
47:17 48:3,24
51:4,7 53:19
chief's 12:5
chiefs 15:1
children 40:20
choose 53:3
Christmas 8:15
church 8:19 40:7
40:14
cities 43:9,10
citizens 9:10,23
10:22 11:8,17
17:9,11 22:3
30:15 44:16
50:5
citizens' 8:23
city 9:1,3,17
10:10,12,16,24
12:10 13:8,21
14:10,21,22
15:8,10,12
21:6 22:3,12
22:21 23:7
28:17 29:11,12
34:14 37:15
40:4,21 43:7
46:10,18 48:20
city's 22:16
city-owned 21:16
civilian 8:21
9:6
civilians 9:5
class 37:12,12
clean 28:21 29:2
43:8,10
clear 9:14,19
30:1
clearance 17:12

clerk 14:22
close 10:6 17:12
closed 11:9,15
11:18,19 52:14
52:23 53:2
closely 26:24
closest 49:13
closure 18:25
club 48:18
clubs 25:14
Cole 8:6
College 37:22
colonel 47:18
combined 10:23
come 4:14 21:15
34:14 38:11
39:19 42:22
43:13,22 44:16
44:23 45:9,10
47:3 50:6,20
52:5
comes 19:7
coming 43:14
44:7,13 52:8
Commander 6:16
6:16,18,18,25
6:25 27:18
commend 42:15
44:20 45:1,15
comment 51:15
comments 11:16
12:4 17:18,19
18:2 19:21
25:9 27:3 28:5
31:9 32:22
43:21 44:5,6
46:3 47:5
51:14
commission 12:12
13:15 22:24
55:20
commissioner 2:4
2:5,6,7,8 4:6
4:17,19,24,24
5:1,2,4,6,12
5:13,20,21
9:15,25 12:4,7
13:13 15:11,21
15:22 16:9
17:17 18:3
25:10,23,24,25

26:2,17,18
27:3,4,7,11,24
28:6,10 29:13
29:19,23 30:14
30:15,19 33:6
33:7,8 34:25
35:20,25 36:4
36:9,20,20,22
36:25 37:1,9
39:2,2,15,16
39:24,25 40:12
40:24,25 41:16
41:16,18 42:6
42:7,18,19
43:7,21 44:23
44:24 45:2,3,4
50:23 51:1,4
51:12,15 52:15
52:16 53:8,9
53:22,24
commissioners
1:9 2:1 4:7,22
5:10 6:1 7:11
8:14,20 13:16
13:17 14:18
25:8 32:6 33:5
53:15,18
committee 33:4,8
communicate
39:11
communication
9:13
communications
11:24 41:23
44:5
communities
35:11 46:18,20
community 7:19
8:17,19 15:14
17:8,9,15 19:7
24:13 30:1,16
34:18,21 35:10
36:16,23 37:4
37:21 44:1
45:9 48:13,15
50:5
compassion 43:2
complaint 51:5
complaints 8:23
45:9
completely 27:13

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

compliance 10:12
24:18 29:4
30:2
compliant 24:20
complied 49:11
component 27:20
composition
13:18
computer-aided
55:9
concentrated
33:9
concept 14:8
concern 8:9
concerned 38:19
39:10,12
concerns 38:14
39:2 46:8
conclude 17:24
concluded 54:5
condition 44:18
conduct 15:6
45:8
confiscated
49:15
congregation
40:15
connection 42:3
consent 12:21,25
13:2,10
considerably
19:12
considered 25:16
28:14
consists 24:4
constantly 25:3
continue 9:11
12:18 13:17
32:14 35:22
45:18
control 9:10
12:13
controls 48:17
convey 42:17
conviction 20:17
Conway 6:14
cooperation 15:2
coordinate 21:23
25:21
coordinating
21:21 25:19

coordinator 7:20
copies 32:6
cops 36:1
copy 51:1
core 31:24
Corps 34:10
correct 7:7 16:8
45:17 55:10
corrected 16:6
correction 45:12
corridor 24:10
cost 37:16
council 14:22
15:9,10
counsel 55:12
counselors 18:21
count 48:17
counted 46:12
counterterrorism
21:25 22:7
country 21:11
counts 48:17,19
County 55:3,19
course 20:19
23:2 38:18
court 7:15 55:5
courts 49:19
coverage 21:5
covered 35:17,18
covert 29:11
CPL 49:12,13
Craig 15:5 53:19
credit 46:22
48:15,19
crime 6:13 10:16
10:17,20,22
11:1,4,5 16:15
16:16 17:1,2,5
18:18 19:7,25
20:1,3,5,11,16
20:17,19,22
21:1,9,11,24
22:2,24 23:6
23:12,14 24:1
25:5,17 26:3
27:4,5,8,8,9
27:12,17,19
46:13,16,22
47:7 48:20
52:3
crimes 6:19 18:8

27:25
criminal 21:2
criminals 28:11
Crisnet 47:12
criteria 38:9
critical 21:7
22:16
Cromwell 8:3
CSR-8887 55:17
CTAT 22:1
curious 31:8
currently 44:8
customers 52:4
cutting 45:17

D

D 2:4
D.C 6:6 10:10
16:12 47:5
Dad 36:11
daily 20:22 22:9
48:4,5
dancing 34:7
dark 28:12,22
DARRYL 2:4
data 21:19
data's 32:8
date 14:20
Davis 2:7 5:6,6
15:21 18:3
25:24 26:17,18
44:24 45:2
day 24:4,8 25:15
33:9,24 34:3,5
34:22 36:12
50:13
deal 39:6
December 25:6
decrease 46:22
dedicated 24:16
deep 34:18
definitely 17:21
29:24 30:13
48:11,17
definition 21:15
degrees 31:18
demanding 30:16
democracy 9:7
demonstrated
23:10
department 8:22

8:24 9:22
10:12 12:9,14
12:17,23 17:10
20:15 31:14,17
31:19 32:10
34:8,15 37:20
39:1 40:6 41:2
41:8 43:17
47:20 52:2
department's
20:20 39:3
departments 41:7
47:21
deputy 3:14 6:9
7:2,8 12:22
14:3 16:13,13
17:25 18:6
19:5 25:12
27:15,15 28:2
28:16 29:22
31:10,12 33:2
47:6 48:3
describe 31:16
description 10:3
46:8
detail 36:23
detectives 21:8
Detroit 1:9,12
1:14 4:1,13
8:21 9:2 10:10
10:17 11:8
12:10,14 13:8
14:21 20:15
22:4,24 23:1,2
25:16,20 28:17
28:18 31:25
34:15,21 36:1
36:5 37:7,11
39:8 40:5,18
40:21,21 41:4
43:1,24,25
44:4 46:9
47:20 48:20
49:5
Detroit's 22:21
38:5
Detroiter 46:8
Dewaelsche 4:5,6
4:17,21 5:9,14
5:17,22,25 7:1
7:7,9 8:7

DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018

15:20,23 16:2
16:7,10,21
17:23 18:1
19:20,24 25:8
25:25 26:17
27:2 28:3,8
30:20 31:2,7
31:11 32:1,15
32:22 33:3,7
34:24 35:18
36:8,19 37:8
39:3,14,23
40:10 41:15,19
42:5 43:20
44:11 46:2
47:4,23 48:24
51:13,19,22
52:7,12,17,20
53:1,6,10,14
53:25 54:3
DEWAELSHE 2:3
dialogue 13:20
difference 9:16
9:17,19 17:20
differences
46:11
different 18:20
20:13 31:15
dignity 44:15
direction 7:23
19:2,18
directly 27:22
director 7:22
10:4,11
dirty 28:22
disappeared
49:17
disclosure 19:3
discovered 23:5
discuss 11:13
22:1
discussed 11:2
discussing 9:16
discussion 9:15
15:24 33:20
discussions
47:19
display 23:18
Disrespectful
50:16
Dist 2:4,5,6,7

distribute 10:4
district 4:25
5:1,4,6 34:16
34:21 37:6
46:23 51:24
districts 32:17
46:19 48:16
document 10:5
doing 16:18
17:15 18:19
22:5 24:14
26:8 31:23
34:20 35:23
39:3,4 42:19
45:19,19,25
52:1
dollar 47:10
dollars 9:2
46:24
domestic 22:10
double 45:16
downtown 21:22
22:25 49:19
DPD 39:7 44:2
52:25
DPD's 23:21
DPOA 38:8
DPS 24:11
DPW 21:21
Dr 7:23,25 8:8
30:25
drastic 42:11,13
draw 41:22
drawn 28:12
drives 19:6
DTE 22:25
due 19:16
Duggan 13:22
duly 55:7
dumping 29:10,12
duties 44:18
duty 53:16
dwelling 26:9
dynamic 20:12

E

E 2:6
early 41:24
ears 48:19
ease 26:7
easily 26:20

east 28:19 36:12
Edgars 48:11
edged 45:16
Edwards 34:4
effort 41:6
efforts 10:19
21:22 25:21
either 55:13
elaborate 36:21
42:1
elected 6:3
13:17 14:19
Elizabeth 2:8
5:2
emergency 13:19
14:20
emphasize 39:5
employees 20:6
employment 11:3
empowering 13:15
encourage 28:21
43:11
enforcement 11:7
18:20 20:14
engagements
18:19
enhanced 10:23
enhancement
10:20
enlighten 38:12
ensure 10:11
21:5 24:19
ensures 48:12
entertainment
36:10
entire 24:17
26:4 42:15,16
equivalent 12:19
Eric 44:9 46:4,7
especially 25:17
43:10
Esther 34:4
Eva 2:3 4:6
evaluating 25:4
event 22:11 36:6
41:7 49:4
55:13
events 21:23
22:12
everybody 28:11
36:3 40:13

45:20
evidence 20:8,24
21:1
exactly 19:10
examine 11:6
excellence 21:14
excited 34:3
excluding 13:2
executive 14:3
31:20
exist 32:9
exists 8:20
expectations
10:12 29:7
expires 55:20
expo 49:4
express 8:9
external 22:21
extra 48:18
extraordinary
13:4
eye 9:4
eyes 11:5 48:18

F

face 45:12,12,12
45:13
facial 21:18
facing 36:1
fact 18:16 19:13
Faith 44:9,12,12
45:4
fall 27:17,19
29:23
fallen 8:10,13
36:6
falls 27:18
false 19:16
familiar 42:12
families 8:11
fantastic 37:3
far 9:21 18:10
40:6 46:16
fashion 48:6
51:24
fashioned 17:7
favor 5:15,23
15:25 52:18
53:11 54:1
FBI 22:22 46:9
47:22 48:2

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

FBI's 46:14
fear 19:6
federal 27:13
feeds 24:1,20
 27:1 29:8
feel 34:9 42:19
 50:4
feet 23:7 28:20
felt 30:17
field 33:10
 35:14
fight 10:17 11:5
filthy 28:12
finalize 10:7
finally 12:21
financial 22:25
 26:19 37:14
find 29:15
finding 29:11
fine 9:22 49:16
finest 38:5
firearm 49:14
 50:19
firm 14:15
first 7:17 12:8
 44:9
fiscal 7:18
five 37:14 38:6
 49:8,9
flag 48:21
floor 48:10
flow 11:15 21:22
flyers 35:5,5,7
 36:16,17
focus 22:2
focused 41:3
folks 7:3 27:21
 48:4
follow 17:8
 22:13
followed 44:9
 46:4 49:1,18
food 34:7 36:10
force 11:3,4
 16:21
forces 46:25
 47:2
form 55:9
formal 16:4
former 13:13
forth 30:9 45:18

45:25
forward 11:6
 14:14 15:17
 24:25 30:12
found 12:10 34:4
founder's 34:3
founders 33:24
founding 9:7
four 44:8
front 6:11 43:11
fruitful 35:1
full 14:21,22,22
function 48:4
further 29:20
 55:12
future 24:25
 28:4

G

gains 10:22
gang 50:10
Garza 2:3 4:6
gas 23:7,10,15
 28:13,20,21
generally 32:4
getting 18:17
 36:13
give 8:8 16:17
 17:14,21 20:4
 44:6 46:22
 48:13
given 4:20
giving 12:13
 34:22 49:14
go 6:2 7:10,17
 11:15 13:23
 15:9,17 19:2,3
 26:21 28:6,8
 29:20 31:11
 33:4 34:11,20
 35:7,10,11
 39:20 40:14
 45:5 46:16
 47:1,2,11
 52:14,23
goal 23:13 24:13
 25:5
goes 19:13 24:22
 41:11 47:21
going 7:10 14:24
 19:1,18 22:12

24:25 30:6
 34:5,5,6,10,11
 34:16 35:14
 36:10 37:11,12
 45:5 48:22
 49:9,23 53:2
good 4:5 7:25
 12:8 17:7
 18:14,16,24
 20:2 30:4
 32:25 33:18,21
 33:21 34:9
 35:4 37:1 40:4
 40:23,24 41:11
 43:6,7,18 45:5
 45:18,21 46:1
 46:6 49:3
 51:23 52:8
Gordy 34:4
government 4:11
 9:8
GPS 21:19
graduate 37:11
great 9:23 26:12
 28:3 33:2
Greektown 24:10
Green 10:24 17:6
 21:4,16 22:6
 23:2,4,13,18
 23:19,22 24:4
 24:8,15 25:11
 25:14,16 28:13
 28:15,25 29:17
 29:25 30:2,10
 30:18 32:5,7
 32:12,17 52:3
Greentown 24:9
group 22:8 24:11
grows 26:13
growth 25:2
guess 44:14
guys 26:12 50:21
 50:21

H

hand 35:7 36:17
 36:18 50:2,8
handle 25:4 48:9
 51:5
happen 46:20
happening 19:4

23:7
happy 26:9 34:8
hard 17:14 33:13
Hart 15:1
head 50:4
headquarters
 1:12 8:16
 43:25
heads 49:15
hear 9:15 26:9
 27:25 43:2,4
 47:11,16
heard 38:24
 51:10
hearing 6:5
 15:14,24 19:21
 32:23 43:21
 44:22 53:20
heart 25:11
 34:11 44:21
 51:10
Heights 37:20
 38:25
help 10:4 32:16
 33:17,20 41:12
 48:18 50:21
helpful 29:6
 35:1
helping 17:11
helps 48:14
heros 36:6
hey 18:22 49:13
Hicks 4:15 5:8
 7:10,12 16:3
 32:2,3 41:21
 42:8,15 49:1
 52:21 53:13
HIDTA 22:24
high 21:15 23:16
 25:17
higher 9:14
 23:12 39:21
highly 44:20
 45:1,15
history 14:11,12
 23:4
hit 14:23
hoc 33:4
holder 49:12,14
Holdings 23:1
holiday 8:15

DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018

homeland 22:22
homes 24:13
homicide 16:22
17:12
honor 4:18 36:6
hope 10:6 13:8
15:7,13 26:13
32:10,13 36:3
hoping 39:7
hour 21:12
hours 21:8
house 37:3,5,5
39:9
housing 25:1
hub 20:20
hundreds 10:24
46:23

I

identify 22:18
37:18
identity 45:24
Ilitch 23:1
31:21
illegally 29:12
immediately 7:16
impact 37:13,24
important 9:6,10
23:3 35:22
39:6 40:6
49:22
impressed 26:4,8
45:21
improve 9:3
10:18 21:22
22:3,4 23:17
24:13 29:1
inaudible 6:25
incidents 21:7
23:22
includes 12:22
incoming 41:23
increase 18:24
28:25
increased 24:2
38:15
indicate 5:15,23
12:19 13:24
15:25 52:18
53:11 54:1
indicates 32:8

individual 19:8
individuals 9:20
9:22 48:8
inform 41:9
information 8:12
20:12,13,16,20
20:23 22:10
23:9 31:1 32:2
32:11
infrastructure
22:17
initial 24:21
injured 8:10,13
inspections 30:3
inspector 14:9
install 21:3
23:16 24:22
installer 24:23
instilling 17:10
Intel 19:25
20:21 22:8
intelligence
6:13 10:16
16:16 20:3,5
20:11,18 22:6
27:5
intending 49:8
interested 24:17
33:17 55:13
interim 7:22
internal 6:21
international
22:10
Internet 23:18
interpretation
17:21
intricately
25:13
introduce 4:22
6:5,8,10 7:10
7:23
invest 38:20
invested 47:9
investigate 8:22
51:6
investigations
21:2
investigative
17:8 21:7
investigator 8:1
8:3,3,4,4,4,5

8:5,6 42:16
51:4,7
investment 16:20
38:22 47:10
investments
10:17,19,21
11:3
invited 4:13
invocation 4:12
4:20
involved 25:13
26:7,14
issue 9:25 14:24
15:8,16 38:1
39:9 43:3,4
issued 50:24
item 11:12,19
16:11
items 11:13
41:22

J

January 23:5,15
job 10:3 26:12
33:2 34:10
37:3 46:1
48:12 49:16
52:6
Joe 18:15
Johnson 7:18
join 15:16 24:11
24:19 30:18
38:3
joining 6:6,7
Jones 8:3,4
15:10
jump 19:6
jumping 36:2
June 23:5
jut 30:23

K

Kari 6:12 20:3
keep 28:18,21
29:2 32:5
33:15,15 35:2
35:14,24 45:20
45:21,25 48:22
keeping 13:7
kids 19:13
kind 34:13

know 13:13 14:11
14:12,14 17:8
22:13 31:6,13
32:17 37:18
38:10,24 39:9
39:12 40:19
41:8,10,13
42:9 45:6
46:13 49:10,15
49:23 50:18,20
50:22 51:12
52:4,5
Knowing 40:23
knowledge 26:5
knowns 19:12,17
knows 34:4
kudos 17:14
31:25 48:13

L

laid 49:11
Lamar 7:21
language 14:4,20
Lansing 36:3
larceny 17:4
large 37:12
largely 41:23
law 11:7 18:20
20:14
layout 26:4
Leach 11:11
52:25 53:17
leadership 31:21
38:8
learn 33:14
leave 37:13 38:6
39:20
leaving 37:11,19
38:13,21
Lee 49:2 51:20
51:23
left 4:23
legal 7:19
legalization
49:7
letter 12:6
13:11 14:11
level 27:13
31:18 33:18
44:18
levels 20:5

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

leverage 20:12
Lewis 18:15
liaison 6:15
license 21:17
licensed 49:12
 49:13
lieutenant 7:4,4
 7:5,5 11:11
 12:19 13:1
 14:9,17 15:19
 48:10 53:16
life 9:3 22:3
 38:2 46:7
light 10:24 21:4
 21:16 22:6
 23:2,4,13,18
 23:19,23 24:4
 24:8,15 25:11
 25:14 28:13,25
 29:17,25 30:2
 30:10,11,18
 32:5,17
lighting 23:17
 29:1
Lights 17:6
 25:16 28:15
 32:7,12 52:3
limit 44:6
limited 42:22
line 35:16 46:14
 47:8,8,15
Lisa 4:8
list 13:5 15:2
 30:21 32:6,7
 32:12
listed 13:11
 25:18 41:22
listening 40:3
lists 12:14
little 22:1
 36:21,23 48:14
live 24:22
lively 33:19
lives 41:4
living 24:13
lobby 14:23 38:2
 39:6,7,11
lobbying 38:4,15
local 47:20
locally 9:11
located 12:2

44:3 48:9
location 12:1
 23:20
locations 10:24
 21:5 22:7
 23:14,17,23,24
 24:3 32:5,8,9
long 22:14 42:23
 46:7
look 11:6 14:25
 15:16 29:15,25
 37:9 39:4,10
looked 22:14
 50:7
looking 24:25
 33:22 34:22
 35:3 39:22
lose 33:12 35:3
 35:15
lost 41:5
lot 18:19 26:21
 31:23 36:10
 37:22 39:21
 47:1,9 48:21
love 38:22
LSA 7:3 38:8

M

M 2:7
ma'am 29:18
Macomb 37:21
Madam 4:15 5:8
 7:12 12:7
 13:12 15:19
 16:3 27:4 32:3
 39:13,25 41:21
 42:7 43:18
 51:20 52:11,21
 53:8,13,22
main 22:2
maintain 30:8
maintaining 30:9
major 6:18 10:17
 37:20 38:25
making 15:17
 29:7 40:2
man 35:9 50:2
 51:16
management 21:21
 47:9,14
manager 13:19

14:20 34:15,17
Mancini 7:15
 55:6,17
mandate 15:13,17
 42:23
mandates 13:7
manner 47:25
 48:6
mapping 20:21
March 49:3
marijuana 49:6
Mark 7:4 38:8
Marlon 6:16
Martin 30:25
master 31:18
 48:12
matter 13:22
 41:1,2
matters 45:11
mayor 8:24 13:5
 13:14,21,21
 14:5,5,8,10,21
 15:6 26:11
 35:23
McCalister 7:23
 7:25 8:1,8
 51:5,7
McNichols 44:4
mean 19:15 31:15
 44:18 52:25
means 38:18 55:9
media 7:15,20
 22:18
medica 22:12
medical 49:5
meet 8:15,17
 30:7 34:16
 36:16,17
meeting 1:10 4:8
 4:10,11 7:13
 8:2,19 11:2,9
 11:23 18:7
 34:17 35:1,13
 37:4,4 40:1
 41:25 43:24
 44:1 53:7,21
 53:23 54:5
 55:7
meetings 11:13
 44:13
meets 8:14

member 51:10
members 20:9,10
 31:16,19 44:23
memorandum 30:10
men 33:13 35:5
mention 18:4
 51:10
mentioned 22:7
 37:4
met 33:9,25 34:1
 47:17
Michael 6:20
Michigan 1:14
 4:1 37:22
 47:17 55:1,19
mid 11:23
Mike 31:21
Mile 36:12
military 36:7
 41:3
millennial 40:20
Miller 46:5 49:1
 49:3 50:25
 51:3,9
mind 34:23
mine 28:9
minutes 5:18
 44:6 49:9,9
missed 34:12,13
mission 20:12
mix 11:6 20:6
modeling 23:9
modified 10:14
modify 8:25
money 38:4,20,21
monitor 8:23
 15:15 22:17
 23:22 27:12
monitoring 22:16
month 8:16,18
 35:9 37:12
monthly 48:1
months 10:9
 32:13
motion 5:11,18
 5:19 15:20
 16:4,8 52:13
 52:22,23 53:2
 53:7,13,19,20
MOU 24:18
move 14:14 30:12

DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018

53:8,23
moved 5:12,14,20
5:22 15:21,23
52:15,17 53:10
53:25
moving 44:4
mow 33:23 34:1,4
multifamily 25:1
26:9
multimillion
47:10
multiplier 11:3
11:4 16:21
museum 33:23
34:2,2,5
music 34:7

N

name 12:1 34:1
34:23 40:9
44:12 46:7
49:20,24 50:3
50:17
names 49:23
national 17:13
19:1
nationally 9:11
naturally 25:11
nature 19:10
necessary 43:9
need 14:14,15
26:24 33:16,17
35:10 36:16,17
38:3,7,11 39:6
40:4,5 43:16
43:18 50:20
52:21
needs 11:17 12:3
negotiated 13:20
neighbor 30:4
neighborhood
29:24 43:12
Neighborhoods
34:15
neighbors 43:6
43:18
neither 55:12
Nevada 49:4
never 41:13
new 11:5 33:23
33:25 34:14

35:11 36:1
44:22 47:14,14
news 40:4,14
52:9
Nichols 8:5
non-sworn 20:7
21:13
noncriminal 8:23
nonfatal 16:25
20:9 21:8
normally 18:17
18:18
notable 10:18
Notary 55:5,18
note 9:12 11:11
11:18 13:6
notes 55:11
notice 29:3
noticed 18:3
52:2
notifications
18:21
November 21:10
NPOs 29:3
number 43:2,3
50:9 51:17
numbers 16:17
46:12 47:25
48:2,2,5

O

objective 9:1
obligated 13:5
obtained 12:2
obvious 17:20
obviously 17:20
23:2
occur 23:22
occurring 23:6
OCI 42:8
offenses 17:2,5
offering 31:16
office 3:12 42:4
officer 22:4
37:17 49:13
52:24
officers 8:10,13
9:14 12:9
17:15 22:5
29:24 35:12
37:11,13,18

38:7,13,17
39:17 41:1
44:17
officers' 10:18
officials 6:3
oh 6:2 28:2
36:11 51:10
okay 6:5 16:10
27:24 29:21
31:2 37:1 53:1
old 9:6 17:7
43:22,23
on-board 24:17
once 33:13 35:24
oncoming 21:4
ongoing 33:16
open 11:13 22:11
23:11
opened 21:9
operating 26:6
operation 21:12
operations 8:23
operators 26:6
opinion 9:16,17
12:24 21:10
opportunity
34:12 42:10
Opposed 5:17,25
16:2 52:20
oral 11:24 44:5
order 11:20
organized 27:5,8
27:8,9,11,19
27:25
organizing 30:15
outgrow 25:3
outreach 7:19
10:5
oversight 8:21
9:6 12:13
overview 20:4
owner 29:6 51:24
owners 28:21
49:5

P

p.m 4:3 8:17
43:24 53:4,5
54:5
package 5:18
10:3,14

paid 39:17,18
Park 36:11
parking 37:22
part 23:14 28:24
partially 46:21
participants
32:18
participating
24:5
particular 13:22
41:25 48:7
particularly
20:14
partner 22:20,22
22:23 30:3,7
30:10 31:3,14
partnered 21:20
23:15 31:20
partnering 28:14
partners 22:21
22:25 26:19
30:2
partnership 23:1
30:24
party 23:11
55:13
pass 40:14,23
passed 36:25
40:17
passes 53:13
pastor 40:14
patrol 23:25
24:2,3
patrols 6:21
pay 11:10 31:18
39:17,21 48:6
52:24 53:16
paying 25:2
PD 37:19 38:25
Peace 8:19 40:7
people 4:11
18:17,18 22:20
29:7,12 33:20
34:2,6 35:11
36:18 40:2,19
41:12,13 43:7
43:8,13,13
49:23
percent 16:22,25
16:25 17:1,2,4
17:4,5,6,14

DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018

18:10, 24, 25
19:1, 15 23:6
perfectly 49:16
perform 21:3
24:21
period 38:21
periods 8:15
person 4:8 33:25
35:3 38:18
person's 50:2
personal 13:12
personally 15:5
personnel 7:22
10:4, 10 11:12
11:13 20:7
21:13 52:25
perspective 9:4
Petty 6:14, 14
physical 23:19
pick 13:6 52:23
picture 19:8
pipeline 24:6
place 4:9 6:7
14:3 29:5
35:21
places 28:12, 12
28:12 33:22, 23
planning 6:23
plate 21:17
plazas 24:12
plea 40:2
please 4:14 6:5
10:4 11:11, 18
11:25 28:18
42:4 44:5
pleased 35:12
51:25
plus 10:24 38:7
PM 1:11
podium 4:14
18:11
point 10:2, 13
33:3 46:17
police 1:9 4:6, 7
4:13 7:11 8:13
8:15, 20, 21, 25
8:25 9:12 10:4
10:25 11:10
12:12, 14, 16
13:3, 4, 15, 15
13:21 14:25

15:4, 4, 6 16:12
17:7 20:15
29:24 33:25
34:8 35:12, 22
36:1, 6 37:22
40:6 41:3
44:17 46:10, 14
47:2, 3, 17, 20
47:20 52:2
53:18
POLICE'S 3:12
policing 9:4
16:20 17:10
45:17
policy 7:20 8:25
Polly 7:23 8:1
51:5
portions 41:25
position 10:3, 5
14:15, 16
possible 49:20
post 21:3 24:22
post-it 28:16
posted 25:18
28:19
posting 10:6
power 12:8 13:25
14:21, 22, 22, 23
powers 9:8 12:15
13:4
pray 4:19
pre 21:3
precinct 25:13
36:5 44:2, 3
49:25 51:16
53:17
prepare 33:15
present 4:16
7:24 27:22
presentation
10:15, 21 11:6
16:16 19:25
27:21 32:24
president 15:10
pressed 45:16
pretty 33:21
prevent 20:16
previous 18:7
principal 9:5
principals 9:7
9:10

print 12:1
priority 23:23
private 11:14
22:25 26:19
46:25 47:1
probably 32:7
problem 22:14
49:16 50:18
procedure 49:18
procedures 9:25
process 9:24
10:7, 9, 11 14:4
14:7 15:3, 7
24:17 29:4
33:11, 12, 14, 16
33:19 35:6, 13
35:15 37:13
processed 20:25
professional
6:17 15:5
45:13 50:6, 17
program 24:11
25:6 26:14
30:18
project 21:15, 24
23:2, 3, 4, 13, 18
24:4, 7, 15, 19
25:1 28:25
29:10 30:18
promote 12:8
29:17 39:12
40:17, 17, 18, 18
promoted 14:13
promoting 49:6
promotion 9:20
12:15, 16 13:1
13:11 14:6
promotions 9:19
12:17 14:16
proof 50:13
proper 21:5
49:18
properties 29:17
property 17:2, 5
46:24
proud 23:3 42:19
provide 8:12, 20
9:2 12:25 13:2
13:4 20:15, 21
21:1, 13 22:9
23:23 27:21

36:23 46:11
providing 20:22
22:5 43:2
public 1:12
11:16, 21 12:4
14:14 25:17, 20
34:21 36:5
41:9 43:1, 3, 4
43:25 44:5
55:5, 18
publicly 13:23
pull 15:10 30:11
pulling 19:8
purpose 21:13
31:4 52:22
pursue 20:16
purview 27:17
put 28:14 30:6
42:9, 18 43:12
45:23 46:22
put-on 44:21

Q

qualified 10:8
quality 9:3 22:3
23:16
quarterly 47:25
question 9:24
25:15, 24 26:18
30:21 47:7, 24
questions 18:1
19:21 25:7, 9
27:2 28:5 31:8
32:23 42:2, 4, 6
43:21 51:14
quick 30:21
quiet 40:21
Quinn 7:13
quorum 5:8

R

radio 48:17
raid 49:10, 10
50:1, 10
raising 32:10
rank 12:22 14:8
14:12, 17 15:18
41:2
ranks 9:14 12:19
14:8 15:18
rate 17:12 18:25

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

rates 19:3
reach 15:17
read 16:5 52:22
readers 21:17
reading 9:16
 33:18
reads 12:16
real 19:25 30:21
realize 35:14
realizes 28:11
really 25:2
 31:14 33:9
 35:10,10 37:2
 42:17 43:18
 50:21 51:9
realtime 10:20
 10:22 11:4
 20:19 21:9,11
 21:24 22:2
 23:23 24:1
 25:5 26:3
 27:17
reason 33:11
 38:24 41:25
reasoning 38:17
rebuttal 46:11
receive 8:22
 37:16 45:8
received 32:7,12
recognition
 21:18
reconcile 48:1
reconciling
 47:24
reconvene 53:7
record 13:6 16:3
 46:7 52:22
 53:4,5
recorded 55:7
records 47:9,14
 49:21,25 50:12
recoup 37:15
recourse 37:15
recover 20:25
recruit 33:10,13
 33:22 35:2,14
 35:21 39:4
recruiting 33:8
 33:10,10,11
 34:8,19 35:8
 36:14 37:2

reduce 23:14
reduced 10:25
 55:8
reenforce 14:16
refashion 13:9
reference 13:22
referenced 47:12
reflecting 13:12
reflection 9:20
refreshments
 36:10
regarding 16:17
 17:18 25:10
 47:7
regards 49:5
regular 1:10
 8:16 11:20
reject 30:5
related 8:12
relates 9:17,24
 26:18
relationship
 52:1
relationships
 24:14
release 49:23
remain 24:20
remained 50:16
 50:17
remains 12:25
remarks 8:11
 13:12 16:6
remember 34:1
remind 11:24
report 6:2 8:8
 10:1 16:11,15
 17:24 18:12
 32:8,12 41:20
 46:10,14 47:3
reported 18:9
reporter 7:15
 55:5
reporting 18:17
 18:20 19:16
 43:5 46:15
reports 33:4
 47:11,16
represent 32:16
 38:12
representative
 37:6 40:10,12

representatives
 6:3 9:22
representing
 3:12 16:14
request 11:9,11
 11:14 13:10
 32:4 52:24
 53:15,18,19
required 11:20
requirements
 28:24
resignation
 14:11
resolution 14:16
resolve 47:2
resources 20:13
 41:9
respect 14:4
 44:15
respond 15:11,12
 17:19 42:4
 43:5
responding 22:6
responds 21:7
response 17:19
 17:22 20:8,10
 20:24 21:6
 23:24
responsibilities
 20:18,24
responsibility
 20:9 22:15
 23:21 42:23
 43:17
restart 32:11
restate 16:7
results 11:19
retention 38:9
 39:5
return 11:20
ridiculous 41:5
right 6:10 7:16
 16:18 17:13
 19:2,4,18
 30:12 31:7,24
 34:23 36:4
 37:7 40:16
 41:11 46:16
 47:15 48:3,6,9
 49:19
rights 9:9

risk 23:9,12
Road 36:12
robbery 16:23
Robert 7:17 12:3
robust 24:6
Rock 22:25 26:19
Rodney 7:5
room 27:22
row 7:17
RPR 55:17
rude 50:15,16
rudely 50:2
rules 10:12
run 21:11 29:10
running 20:19

S

Sacred 34:11
 51:10
SAD 46:18,18
safety 1:12
 10:18 22:4
 43:1,3,4,25
salary 37:15
 38:10
Samuel 46:5 49:1
Sanders 45:5
Santana 37:6
 40:8,9,11,12
Saturday 36:7
saying 5:15,23
 15:25 35:15,24
 49:20,21 52:18
 53:11 54:1
says 28:18
scale 25:2
scared 50:5
scenes 21:1
schedule 10:15
 10:15 28:4
scholarship
 31:17
scholarships
 31:16
school 22:13
 24:12 31:22
 34:21
schools 25:17,20
scrubbing 48:4
second 5:13 8:18
 15:22 35:8

DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018

46:17 51:14
52:16
secondary 11:2
seconded 5:15, 23
15:24 52:18
secretary 7:10
32:2 41:20
section 11:23
12:4, 10, 12, 14
12:15, 18, 21
17:12 44:5
security 22:22
46:25 47:1
see 4:15 9:21
29:16 37:24
38:6 43:13, 14
43:15 49:9
seeing 12:3
44:22, 24
seeks 36:1
seen 42:13
selection 10:7, 9
13:3
self 45:17
send 32:5
sending 32:11
senior 8:3 24:12
Sensitive 45:10
Separation 9:7
Sergeant 6:22, 22
7:13 18:8
33:21, 25 50:15
service 10:25
24:8
Services 7:15
session 8:16
11:9, 16, 18, 19
52:14, 23 53:2
set 12:12 24:24
30:9 34:9, 16
34:19
seven 41:22
sex 18:7
sexual 18:4, 7, 10
18:12 19:7, 9
shake 50:2, 4, 8
she'll 51:5
Shelly 48:10
ship 36:2
Shirley 2:5 5:4
shooting 20:10

21:6
shootings 17:1
21:8
short 13:5 38:21
shortage 36:1
37:10
shot 29:23
showed 23:10
sic 48:11
side 7:18 28:19
28:19 37:7
50:9
sign 28:16 30:11
signage 23:19
24:20
significant 38:4
significantly
23:14
signs 28:17, 19
29:16, 16, 20, 25
30:13
silent 18:18
silver 45:16
simply 32:4
41:21 42:1
single 24:4
sir 7:1 17:24
48:25 51:17
sit 11:17
site 24:21
sitting 28:1
40:3, 16 41:7
41:12
situation 44:18
Sizemore 7:5, 6
skipping 7:21, 22
slide 22:2
Sloan 6:11, 12, 12
20:2, 3 25:19
26:2, 15, 22
27:6, 9, 14
28:24 29:18, 21
30:24 31:5
32:20, 25 33:2
smart 16:19
Smith 50:15
social 22:11, 17
software 21:18
21:19
solute 36:5
somebody 41:8

sooner 36:14
sorry 6:2 18:6
source 22:11
south 32:8 43:10
speak 11:25 19:9
27:22 29:5, 9
35:20 39:6
50:3
speaker 44:9
51:21 52:10
speaker's 12:1
speaking 17:11
18:19
special 18:15
21:23 46:19, 23
48:16
specialists 22:9
specific 30:25
31:4 42:2
specifically
31:6
speech 45:8
spelled 12:9
spike 18:12
spirit 43:1
sponsored 37:5
spreading 40:4
squad 50:10
stack 36:16
staff 6:8 7:11
7:16, 24 24:15
24:16 39:7
42:14, 16, 22
staffed 21:12
staffing 20:5
25:4
stamp 30:6
stand 6:5
standard 12:25
30:8, 8, 9
standards 6:17
standing 33:4
Starr 33:25
Starr's 33:21
start 6:10 16:14
40:4, 5
starting 4:23
13:14 15:1
state 22:22
30:22 31:1, 3
31:13, 22, 23, 25

37:22 41:3
47:17, 21, 22
55:1
statement 9:15
16:4
station 23:8
28:20, 21
stations 23:11
23:16 28:13
statistical
20:23 31:1
statistics 46:13
46:15, 16 47:7
stats 16:17
status 53:16
stay 30:1 38:7
38:23 49:8
53:3
staying 38:17
stenographic
55:11
stenographically
55:8
step 26:22
stepped 31:15
steps 26:21
Sterling 37:19
38:25
Stewart 8:5
stolen 17:4
stop 36:1
stores 23:11
43:14
straight 44:19
45:14
stranger 19:8
strategy 10:5
street 19:9
43:25
structure 12:23
students 33:15
studies 22:23
30:22, 23
stuff 43:16
47:15, 19
subcategory
16:24
subject 14:10
submit 14:11
success 48:21
suggestion 29:14

DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018

35:4
suit 41:1
supervising 8:2
supervisory
12:13
support 5:21
8:10 21:1
25:14 36:3
48:14 49:8
53:9,19,24
supported 53:11
54:1
supporting 17:16
36:2
supposed 49:22
49:24
sure 11:25 15:17
32:9,20 38:12
48:5
suspects 20:17
suspend 11:10
suspension 52:24
53:16
SVU 6:24
sword 45:16
sworn 20:6,8
21:12
Sylvia 37:6
system 18:20
24:24 26:6
45:7 47:9,12
47:14,14 50:19
systems 21:16
25:22 26:23
47:10

T

table 12:2 34:9
34:19 35:8
36:14 41:8,9
take 11:9,20
14:15 15:16
17:18 42:10
48:14,19 51:17
taken 55:11
talk 14:1 20:4
27:7 34:17
38:9 48:16
51:7
talked 14:6 23:8
33:11 37:10

43:7 49:20,22
talking 19:14
40:25 41:2
tap 24:23
taped 7:13
task 48:12
tax 9:2
taxes 46:24
teach 41:12
teachers 18:22
team 20:10,25
21:6,25 22:1,8
31:21 37:2
40:23 42:8,24
42:25
technically
21:10 26:7
technology 11:5
16:20 21:14
telephone 39:11
televised 40:2
tell 18:18 19:3
41:10,13 44:7
52:8
telling 18:21,21
ten 49:9
terms 14:15 15:6
15:7,13,14,16
38:3 42:13
43:1
terror-related
22:10
tether 21:19
text 39:11
thank 4:10,12,18
5:9,17,25 6:7
7:9,12,25 8:6
8:7 12:7 15:19
16:10 17:22,23
19:20,21 20:1
25:7,23 26:2
26:11,11,15
29:20 30:13,18
30:20 31:8
32:1,23,25
34:22,25 35:25
36:4,18,19
39:13,14,22,23
40:25 41:6,14
41:15,19,21
42:5,8,10

43:18,20 44:11
45:2,3,24 46:2
47:3,4,23
48:15,22,24,25
51:9,13,19,22
52:6,7,9,12,20
53:1,3,6,14
54:3,3
Thanksgiving
8:14
THC 49:4,5
theses 26:13
thing 14:7 35:6
41:13 45:19,22
45:24 49:10
things 19:6
35:13 36:11,15
39:21 40:23
46:25 47:2
think 13:23
28:11,20,23
29:6,8 35:17
37:25 48:8
Third 1:13 43:25
thorough 30:2
thought 28:1
threat 21:25
22:8,9 50:7
threats 22:13,18
three 8:16 37:21
Thursday 1:11
8:18 35:8
43:24 44:1
Thursdays 8:17
ticket 50:13,19
50:24
time 4:21 12:6
12:22 13:16
14:9 17:18,25
27:23 29:2
36:16 38:21
44:4 45:22
49:19 50:14
52:13
timely 16:15
47:25
times 47:1
Timothy 11:11
52:25 53:17
today 4:9 6:4,6
7:14,16 8:2

10:14 16:14
24:4
today's 4:8,10
7:13 10:21
Todd 3:14 10:10
told 49:24 50:20
tools 11:7
topics 47:18
total 17:1,5
19:15 20:8,10
totally 31:3
touched 41:24
touching 18:22
tour 26:3
town 33:23 34:1
34:5
traffic 21:20,22
train 37:17
training 37:21
37:23 38:5
39:1,18
transcript 55:10
transcription
55:9
transfers 47:22
transparency 9:9
travel 43:9
treat 44:16
treated 50:1
trending 17:3
48:20
trends 20:22
tried 37:25
true 31:14 55:10
trust 17:10
try 37:24 38:1
39:10,11
trying 22:18
35:24 43:5
Tucker 6:24,24
18:8,11,14,15
19:11,23
TV 15:15
two 10:18 31:18
34:21 37:20
38:25 44:6
46:8
type 37:14
typewritten 55:8

U

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

unable 4:8
 uncle's 18:22
 underlying 38:17
 understand 14:5
 14:19 15:8
 understanding
 30:11 37:16
 unique 9:4
 unit 6:13 16:16
 18:8,15 20:3,4
 20:5,8,11,12
 20:18 21:7
 23:25 27:5,12
 27:16,17,20
 48:7,9
 university 22:23
 30:22 31:3,13
 31:22
 unkempt 28:12
 unknown 6:25
 19:16
 unknowns 19:11
 19:14
 unrolling 43:16
 unsafe 30:17
 upgrade 23:17
 upgraded 47:13
 uptick 18:12
 urban 22:23
 30:22,23
 use 9:2 21:17
 useful 29:9

V

vehicle 17:4
 vendors 33:21
 34:7
 venues 33:9
 verify 23:8
 vetting 22:11
 vice 2:3 4:5,7
 4:17,21 5:9,14
 5:17,22,25 6:1
 7:1,7,9 8:7
 15:20,23 16:2
 16:7,10 17:23
 18:1 19:20,24
 25:8,25 26:17
 27:2 28:3,8
 30:20 31:2,7
 31:11 32:1,15

32:22 33:3,7
 34:24 35:18
 36:8,19 37:8
 39:14,23 40:10
 41:15,19 42:5
 43:20 44:11
 46:2 47:4,23
 48:24 51:13,19
 51:22 52:7,12
 52:17,20 53:1
 53:6,10,14,25
 54:3
 victims 18:15
 19:13
 video 20:8,24,25
 21:18 24:1
 26:20
 viewing 4:11,12
 viewpoint 9:5
 violated 13:24
 violent 17:1
 23:6,12 46:9
 virtually 19:15
 23:25
 visitors 11:8,17
 visits 24:2,3,21
 visual 7:14
 vocational 24:12
 voluntary 24:5
 votes 11:21

W

wages 38:15
 waited 49:18
 waiting 24:6
 want 8:9 9:12,14
 9:19 10:2
 14:13,13 17:14
 19:2,3,3,18
 24:18 25:3
 28:16 29:25
 31:23 33:12,14
 33:15 35:2,2,9
 35:25 39:16
 40:1 41:5,6,22
 42:7,10,15,24
 48:13 50:4
 51:15,17
 wanted 20:4
 28:10 29:14
 51:25 52:5

wants 35:23
 Ward 18:8
 Warren 37:19
 38:25
 Warwick 7:18
 34:24
 Washtenaw 55:3
 55:19
 Watkins 6:22,22
 wave 48:21
 way 7:21 18:5
 19:14,17,19
 34:20 42:23
 44:15
 Wayne 22:22
 30:21,25 31:2
 31:13,22,23,25
 ways 31:15
 we'll 17:19 33:4
 51:7
 we're 16:24 17:2
 17:3,5 18:17
 18:19 19:1,18
 21:21 22:5
 23:3,24 24:14
 24:25 25:1,3
 29:11 30:6
 34:10 35:12,23
 35:24 36:2
 39:22 41:3
 44:4 48:22
 53:2
 we've 21:20 24:9
 34:10 38:15
 41:24 47:8,13
 week 8:14 26:3
 37:4 40:8
 50:11
 weekly 20:23
 weeks 8:16
 welcome 30:19
 went 28:1 34:23
 49:25
 west 28:19 37:7
 44:3
 white 7:20 48:21
 wide 21:6
 William 2:7 5:6
 Willie 2:6 5:1
 Wilson 6:16,16
 wish 38:19

withstanding
 13:18,23
 witnessed 42:21
 women 35:5
 wonderful 52:9
 work 8:21 9:11
 9:23 10:25
 11:7 17:7,15
 24:18 25:12,20
 26:23 33:13
 40:22 42:9,17
 42:25 45:5,18
 45:21 48:22
 51:25
 worked 24:23
 working 8:24
 17:9
 works 24:16
 27:12
 wouldn't 31:5
 write 40:13
 writing 17:20
 wrong 46:16

X

Y

ya'all 44:24,25
 45:7,24,24
 Yancy 49:2 51:20
 51:23,23
 yard 43:11,12
 Yeah 28:6 29:13
 39:25
 year 25:5 34:12
 34:13 42:13
 44:13 45:22,23
 46:9,24
 year-to-date
 16:23
 years 10:16
 37:14 38:2,6,7
 45:23
 yep 18:6
 yesterday 34:2
 50:14
 young 7:4,4
 13:14 14:5
 33:12,20 35:5
 38:8 40:18
 41:12 51:16

**DBOPC Regular Meeting
4/19/2018**

Z	3
0	3 2:5 5:5 8:17 16:25 43:24 3:00 1:11 4:3 30 24:7 300 32:9 307 24:5
1	4
1 2:4 4:25 10 33:24 10th 44:2 11 24:10 51:17 11th 25:13 36:5 49:25 53:17 12 36:8,9 12th 5:19 1301 1:13 43:25 15 19:15 38:2 55:20 150 32:8 16th 13:11 49:3 18 16:22 17:6 184 24:3 19 1:11 4:2 1974 13:14 42:12 19th 5:11 36:7 41:1,1,6	4 2:6 5:1 13:18 4:09 53:4 40 19:1 35:25 48226 1:14
2	5
2 51:24 20 16:24 38:2,7 2012 13:17 2013 13:17 2015 14:23 23:5 2016 23:15 2017 21:10 2018 1:11 4:2 5:19 10:6 13:11 2021 55:20 2034 36:12 20th 10:6 21 17:1 21555 44:3 24 21:12 25 17:5 18:24 23:6 25th 33:24 26 18:24 26th 43:24 28 18:10 29 17:4	5 17:4 36:8,9 5:19 53:5 5:20 54:5 500 23:7 25:6 53 20:6 5540 37:5,5 40:13
3	6
	6 17:2 20:10 33:24 37:6 6:30 8:18 44:2 60 17:14 61 18:25 6th 48:10
4	7
	7 2:7 5:7 13:18 20:8 7-802 12:11,11 12:12 7-803 12:11,14 7-806 12:11,21 7-814 12:11,15
5	8
	8 23:15 36:12 80,000 37:17 8th 44:2,2
6	9
	9-1-1 10:20,23 23:24 9th 36:5